Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited
X B &8 7T F B A R A A

Stock Code A5 : 2310

@) O = i
glloé] el
2 009 Annual Report
F R

il
[
i




Contents B %

Financial Highlights B i =

Chairman’s Statement X [E & &

CEO’s Report [THARBEE

Corporate Governance Report T ¥ ERREE

Directors and Senior Management EEN S EEEAS

Report of the Directors EEEHE =

Independent Auditor’s Report %8 3 #% 2 i 3k &5

Consolidated Income Statement &= &8 &

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %4 2 H I & &
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %R & Bf #4R L &
Statement of Financial Position 81 3R 5 &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zi & EE S B &
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREH &R E XK

Notes to the Financial Statements £ 7% 3R & i &+

Five-year Financial Summary 1 & i =

Corporate Information and Shareholders’ Calendar 2 A E R R REBARER




02

Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

Financial Highlights #&EZE
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We strive to maintain
market share via
more revenue
streams and a more
diverse product
portfolio
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Chairman’s Statement

06  Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

EFERES

severe challenges to the

consumer electronics industry
in 2009. The economy was in its
trough in the first half of the year and
began to slowly recover in the
second half. However, with
consumer spending power yet to
fully restore, customers of electronic
components have been cautious in
replenishing their inventories. As a
result, despite that its sales have
been improving since the second half
year, the sales of the Group for the
whole year was still down as
compared with last year. However,
with our dedicated efforts to trim
costs, we managed to improve our
operational efficiency through cost
reduction and margins improvement.

~ & T he global financial crisis posed

The Group also saw the latest
development in the evolving
consumer electronics industry

opening up huge market

opportunities for integrated total
solutions that can be worked out
with technological know-how of
the Group making use of a

combination of different functional
electronic components. To capture
these market opportunities, the
Group has strategically redeployed
its resources in research and
development of products that
facilitate multi-functioning of
consumer electronics. Armed with
expertise in providing key
components used in manufacturing
different kinds of consumer
electronics, we will align our
operational focus on offering total
solutions that integrate relevant
electronic components to meet our
customers' needs. Technology
driven innovative product
development and mass production
capability will be key to our
continuous success in this new
market trend. The move will not only
enable the Group to maintain its
share in the market with changing
taste, but also increase its income
sources and give it a more diverse
product portfolio.

Looking forward, the Group is
cautiously optimistic about the

Yang Ho Sung 2% 2
Chairman FJ&
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market outlook in 2010. To prepare
its business for when the economy
is fully revived, the Group will
continue to sharpen its edges by
boosting operational efficiency,
minimizing expenditure and
improving management of cash
flow.

Last but not least, | would also like
to express my gratitude to all
shareholders, my fellow board
members, customers and
employees for their continuous
support to Kwang Sung. | believe
that with a team of strong
management and capable staff, we
are well-prepared to overcome all
challenges ahead, seize
opportunities in the changing
market and maximize returns to
our shareholders in the coming
years.

By order of the Board

Yang Ho Sung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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The Group will focus its R&D efforts in
multi-function products to
capture new opportunities
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THREBRES
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The global economy started to
recover in the second half of 2009.
Although turnover has been improving
since the second half year, it still
decreased by 25.8% year-on-year to
HK$592,280,000 in 2009. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Group
recorded profit before taxation of
HK$3,308,000, as compared with a
loss before taxation of HK$1,538,000
for 2008. As a result of tax provision
of HK$35,996,000, including
HK$9,946,000 to be borne by two
shareholders, Mr. Yang Jai Sung and
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Kwang Sung Korea”), for prior
periods in respect of a tax dispute

with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the
“HKIRD”) over the Company’s
50:50 offshore profit claim and

deductibility of lease rentals, loss
after taxation attributable to owners

of the Company increased to

HK$35,774,000. Basic loss per
share was HK11.13 cents.

Turnover decreased by 25.8%
from HK$797,912,000 in 2008 to
HK$592,280,000 in 2009 mainly
because of a decline in sales of
composite components. Turnover
from composite components
was HK$422,027,000 (2008:
HK$624,358,000), down 32.4%
against last year, accounting for 71.3%
of the Group’s total turnover (2008:
78.2%). Sales of unit electronic
components remained solid,
amounting to HK$170,253,000 (2008:
HK$173,554,000) and accounting for
28.7% of the Group’s total turnover
(2008: 21.8%).

Cost Structure

Overall cost of sales decreased by
26.8% from HK$707,511,000 in 2008
to HK$517,780,000 in 2009. The rate
of decrease in cost of sales is higher
than that of turnover. This is mainly due
to a decrease in material costs arising

Yang Jai Sung 2 £
CEO 1THAREL




from change in product mix. During the
year, provision for slow moving
inventory increased markedly from
HK$1,398,000 in 2008 to
HK$4,394,000 in 2009. However, this
negative effect was offset by a
decrease in factory overhead during
the year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was HK$74,500,000,
which represented a decrease of
17.6% from HK$90,401,000 in
2008. The decrease in gross profit
was mainly attributable to a
decreased turnover in 2009.
However, compensated by the drop
in cost of sales, the gross profit
margin rose to 12.6% (2008: 11.3%).

Other income increased by 32.2%
from HK$4,348,000 in 2008 to
HK$5,749,000 in 2009. The increase
was primarily due to the net effect of
a HK$913,000 increase in value
added tax refund, a HK$658,000

The Group will align our operational
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increase in gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, a
HK$400,000 increase in fair value of
investment property, fair value
change of HK$517,000 on derivative
financial liabilities and a HK$1,545,000
decrease in interest income from
bank deposits.

Selling and distribution expenses
decreased by 23.5% to HK$19,148,000
in 2009 from HK$25,014,000 in
2008, which was in line with the
decrease in turnover.

Administrative expenses were kept
at about the same level as in 2008.

Research and development
expenses decreased by 20.9% to
HK$31,066,000 in 2009 from
HK$39,259,000 in 2008. The
decrease mainly reflected the Group
streamlined its research and
development operation, resulting in
decrease in staff salaries and tooling
charge in Korea.

THRRIB®RESE

Other operating expenses decreased
by 33.9% from HK$15,269,000 in
2008 to HK$10,100,000 in 2009.
This was primarily attributable to a
HK$5,515,000 decrease in
impairment loss on trade receivables
during the year.

Income tax expenses increased
significantly from HK$760,000 in
2008 to HK$39,592,000 in 2009.
The significant increase was mainly
due to a provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax of HK$35,996,000 for
prior years.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the
Company the basis of its 50:50
offshore concession claims in relation
to the Company’s manufacturing
activities carried out by Shenzhen
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”) and a third
party processing factory in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and deductibility of lease rentals since
year of assessment 2001/02. The
HKIRD made additional assessment of
approximately HK$3,318,000 for year
of assessment 2001/02 in February
2008, approximately HK$6,424,000

for year of assessment 2002/03 in
March 2009 and approximately
HK$9,333,000 for year of assessment
2003/04 in March 2010.

Up to the date of these financial
statements, the Company has
lodged objections and purchased tax
reserve certificates of HK$9,742,000
as demanded by the HKIRD. In
addition, the Company has also
submitted documentation
information against these additional
assessments.

Out of the provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax of HK$35,996,000 for
prior years, the balance represented
provision of HK$1,587,000,
HK$4,652,000, HK$7,415,000,
HK$6,591,000, HK$4,724,000,
HK$4,089,000, HK$4,833,000 and
HK$2,105,000 for years of
assessment 2001/02, 2002/03,
2003/04, 2004/05, 2005/06,
2006/07, 2007/08 and 2008/09
respectively. However, a sum of tax
expense of HK$9,946,000 should be
borne by two shareholders, Mr. Yang
Jai Sung and Kwang Sung Korea.
The directors are of the opinion that
the provision is to ensure our financial
statements consistent with our
conservative approach and would
not adversely affect our objections
against the above additional
assessments made by the HKIRD.
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Other than the above, the PRC
Corporate Income Tax also increased
by 76.2% to HK$1,910,000. The
increase was mainly attributable to
increased profit recorded in
Shenzhen Kwang Sung.

As a result of the combined effects
of the above, the Group recorded a
loss after taxation attributable to
owners of the Company of
HK$35,774,000 for the year ended
31 December 2009, as compared
with a loss after taxation attributable
to owners of the Company of
HK$2,298,000 for last year. Basic
loss per share was HK11.13 cents
(2008: HKO.73 cents).

The Group primarily finances its
operations with internally generated
cash flow. As at 31 December 2009,
the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$179,386,000 (2008:
HK$155,692,000) and net current
assets of HK$261,731,000 (2008:
HK$283,170,000). Shareholders’
funds amounted to HK$354,579,000
as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$359,145,000).

During the year, the Group recorded
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax

THRARE

£
=

of HK$37,038,000. The amount
represented provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax of HK$1,042,000 for
current year and HK$35,996,000 for
prior years in relation to a tax dispute
with the HKIRD. Owing mainly to the
tax provision for the prior years, the
tax payables under current liabilities
significantly increased from
HK$5,227,000 as at 31 December
2008 to HK$42,712,000 as at 31
December 2009.

Pursuant to a Deed of indemnity dated
23 June 2008, shareholders, Mr. Yang
Jai Sung and Kwang Sung Korea
would indemnify the Group for any tax
liability payables prior to 30 June 2003.
Accordingly, the amounts due from
shareholders under current assets also
increased by HK$9,984,000 to
HK$10,592,000 as at 31 December
2009.

Based on the foregoing, current ratio
of the Group, being the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities,
decreased to 3.04 (2008: 5.09),
while gearing ratio, in terms of total
liabilities to total assets, increased to
0.28 (2008: 0.17).

The average debtor turnover day
increased from 72 days in 2008 to
75 days in 2009. This was mainly
result of longer credit terms granted
to certain major customers with
good repayment historical records.

The average creditor turnover
decreased to 42 days in 2009 from
49 days in 2008. This was mainly
attributable to purchase of raw
materials from new vendors with
shorter credit terms. The average
inventory turnover decreased from
51 days in 2008 to 45 days in 2009,
primarily due to the stringent
inventory control system adopted by
the Group.

All taken into account, the Group
continued to be in a healthy financial
position with sufficient financial
resources to support future
development.

The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risks primarily in sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), and Renminbi
(“BRMB”) and KRW. With Hong Kong
Dollars (“HKD”) pegged to USD, the
Group does not expect any
significant fluctuation in the USD/
HKD exchange rate in the
foreseeable future. For other
currencies such as JPY, RMB and
KRW, the Group has taken steps to
ensure net exposure is kept at
acceptable levels. It buys and sells
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foreign currencies at spot rates when
necessary to address short term
imbalance.

With its production workforce based
in the PRC, most wages and salaries
and factory overheads are
denominated in RMB. As the deposit
interest rate differential between the
RMB and USD has been within a
manageable range in terms of
exchange rate risk, the directors are
of the view that it is not necessary for
the Group to purchase any foreign
exchange forward or options contracts
to hedge against exchange rate risks.
However, the Group will closely
monitor the exchange rate trend.

In April 2009, the Company acquired
59.5% of equity interest in Brocoli Co.,
Ltd. (“Brocoli”) at a consideration of
HK$10,300,000 and, in September
2009, increased the stake to 69.7%
at an additional consideration of
HK$1,264,000.

Other than the above, the Group did
not make any material acquisition or
disposal of any of its subsidiaries or
associated company during the year.

As at 31 December 2009, the
Group had banking facilities of

=&

HK$131,043,000 and no pledging of
assets to banks was involved during
the year to secure the facilities (2008:
HK$149,632,000).

The Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2009 and 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group
had about 1,268 employees (2008:
1,302), of whom 29 were based in
Hong Kong (2008: 25), 1,149 in the
PRC (2008: 1,186) and 90 in Korea
(2008: 91). For the year ended 31
December 2009, staff costs
decreased to HK$76,495,000 (2008:
$109,933,000).

The Board of Directors (the “Board”)
of the Company does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil). The Group’s long-term
dividend policy is to distribute not
less than 30% of its net profit as
dividend each financial year, and the
Board will review this dividend policy
from time to time to ensure optimum
returns to shareholders.

The Company’s share register will be
closed between 24 May 2010 and
26 May 2010, both dates inclusive.
During the period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the entitlement to attend
and vote at the upcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”), all properly
completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 25, Three
Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on 20 May 2010.
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Composite components business
remained as the Group’s major
revenue source for the year ended
31 December 2009, accounting for
71.3% of the total turnover of the
Group. Affected by the economic
downturn during the first half of
2009, the segmental turnover was
HK$422,027,000, a decrease of 32.4%
as compared to HK$624,358,000 in
2008. However, sales in the second
half year recorded significant
improvement as compared with the
first half year.

Both the home audios and car audios
markets are highly susceptible to
change in economic situation, thus
sales of the Group in these two
markets were affected in similar extent

during the year. Sales of tuner modules
for car audios decreased by 23.0% to
HK$104,545,000 during 2009 (2008:
HK$135,859,000), accounting for
24.8% (2008: 21.8%) of the total
turnover from composite components
business. However, the Group braced
by a solid business foundation saw
orders for tuner modules for car audios
rebounded notably in the second half
year, thus being able to maintain its
competitiveness and overall market
share despite the hard times during the
year. Turning to the home audios
market, hit hard by the combined
effect of the economic downturn and
change of market trends, turnover
from tuner modules for home audios
declined by 24.2% to HK$193,259,000
(2008: HK$254,986,000), representing
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IEFE  BenhEBDREAEE
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BE71.3% c X _TENF L F+FLE
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COMPOSITE

COMPONENTS BUSINESS

B R

Sales of Tuner Modules for
Home Audio
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45.8% (2008: 40.8%) of the total
turnover from composite components
business.

Sales of the Group’s wireless
solutions including wireless speaker
systems also decreased, by 47.5%,
to HK$71,586,000 (2008:
HK$136,409,000). The drop was a
result of the Group failing to secure
orders from a major customer for this
product and to market its own
product models in the poor operating
environment during the year.
However, the Group has laid a solid
business foundation through our
strong relationships with existing
customers, which will be necessary
to develop our own product models
in the coming years.

Sales of the Group’s digital products
for the digital multimedia market have
not been growing as well as expected.
Rapid change in digital technology and
a variety of standards in digital audio
broadcasting (“DAB”) over the world
becomes obstacles in developing and
marketing the general and
standardized digital products of the
Group. Such a market phenomenon
plus economic downturn led to a
44.5% decrease in sales of the
Group’s tuner modules for digital
multimedia broadcasting (“DMB”) and
DAB, and global positioning system
(“GPS”) engines to HK$24,175,000
(2008: HK$43,571,000).

To cope with the challenging market,
the Group started integrating various

types of modules products into total
solutions products such as an
integrated printed circuit board
solution that can accommodate
different digital signals for receipt by
a smart-phone docking system and
has been working closely with OEM
(original equipment manufacturer)
customers in Hong Kong and the
PRC to boost sales of the products.

In addition, tuner modules for hybrid
digital radio (“HD Radio”) were well
received by the market, generating
HK$5,564,000 in turnover to the
Group, representing an increase of
13.0% as compared with 2008.
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Sales of Unit Electronic Components
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Sales of Ceramic Components
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Unit Electronic Components
Business

During the year, turnover from unit
electronic components business
amounted to HK$170,253,000,
similar to the level in 2008. Turnover
of this segment accounted for 28.7%
of the Group total. The Group has
successfully developed unique and
innovative products including a
planar transformer, the first in the
world of its kind, which is targeted
at the flat panel LED television and
automotive electronics sectors. It is
scheduled to be put into mass
production from 2010.
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Looking forward, as the world
economy has yet fully recovered and
the financial market and business
environment may experience further
fluctuations, the Group is cautiously
optimistic about the market outlook
in 2010. The Group expects to
maintain sales of its existing products
at similar levels as in 2009 providing
that the market does not turn worse.
Moreover, the Group will continue to
actively identify new business
opportunities, strive to serve the
changing needs of the market and
strategically allocate its resources to
develop products and services with
strong market potential.

Tapping into the trend of convergence
into mobile phones, especially smart-
phones, personal/notebook
computers, and televisions in
electronics industry for home and
away, the Group has developed new
products such as a printed circuit
board solution for smart-phone
docking systems which can integrate
tuner modules for home audio
systems and DAB, digital amplifiers
and other components. So far, the
printed circuit board solution for smart-
phone docking system that was
developed by the Group has been
certified by a world-renowned smart-
phone manufacturer and will be
launched in the market in the first half
of 2010. Strongly confident of the
growth potential of total solutions in
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printed circuit boards, the Group will
invest more resources in development
of this product to lead the industry
trend.

The Group has also developed new
and innovative products of a FM
transmitter and a planar transformer
for LCD and LED televisions which
have attracted orders from a
renowned Korean television
manufacturer. FM transmitters are
used to transmit television sound in
FM signals from televisions to
wireless speakers in home audio
systems, and planar transformers
has evolved from traditional bulky
form to planar form, enabling
televisions and automotive electronic
systems to be flatter and lighter.
These new products are expected to
be new growth drivers for the Group
in the television and automotive
electronics sectors in the near future.

In addition, the Group has planned to
expand its automotive electronic
components business from tuner
modules for car audios to various
types of automotive electronic
components. The Group has recently
developed an integrated analog and
digital tuner modules with antenna for
car audio systems and planned to
supply this product to a Korean
automobile manufacturer in the
coming years. The Group is also
planning to launch new products such
as wireless modules for the auto-toll
pass named Hi-Pass in Korea.

Furthermore, in 2009, the Group
acquired majority shareholding of
Brocoli which specialises in
developing and manufacturing an
innovative flat flexible cable product,
namely the WireTape™, and four
technology patents in relation to the
product. WireTape™ was designed
to remove the hassle of handling
multiple connecting wires in the
home, the office or in automobiles.
The Group has appointed
distributors and will work with
potential distributors all over the
world to market WireTape™ and
related electronic products, which
will be developed and manufactured
by the Group. In addition, the Group
plans to develop new electronic
products for home, mobile, and car
use by applying WireTape™
technology at the same time. In the
meantime, the breakthrough
technology of WireTape™ has been
well received by the industry,
evidenced by the numerous awards
the product has earned, highlighted
by the Innovative Award for 2009 and
2010 in the Consumer Electronics
Show held in Las Vegas in the US,
and the Best Product Innovation
Award from DISTREE XXL 2010 held
in Monte Carlo in Monaco. The
Group believes that with obvious
advantages, the WireTape™ series
will win the appreciation of
consumers, hence bring sustainable
returns to its business and
handsome rewards to shareholders
in the long run.
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Apart from remaining prudent in
executing its business development
strategies and managing cash flow,
the Group will continue enhancing
operational efficiency. The Group is
developing an Enterprise Resources
Planning (“ERP”) system and plans
to have it in place in the second half
of 2010. The ERP system will allow
the Group to improve its business
processes including research and
development, procurement,
production, inventory control, sales,
cost control, and financial
management, which will benefit the
Group by enabling the Group to
make business and management
decisions more effectively.

Although in the short run the
macroeconomic environment will
remain unstable, the Group is
confident of the long-term prospect
of the consumer electronics industry
fuelled by continuous innovation and
new applications. The Group also
believes that once its new products
are launched to the market and
achieve economies of scale, they will
realize satisfactory returns and
contribute to the long term growth
of the Group.

As a caring corporation, the Group
has been active in fulfilling its social
responsibilities to the interest of all

THRRIB®RESE

stakeholders and the society. The
Group’s corporate social
responsibility efforts fall into the
following categories:

1. Marketplace
In the interest of shareholders,
we have worked by the business
objectives of contributing to the
sustainable development of the
electronics industry and
improving consumer electronics
to heighten efficiency and deliver
the best user experience. To
such ends, the Group invests
substantially in research and
development and internal quality
control to ensure the continuous
delivery of quality and reliable
products to customers. The
Company complies with the
requirements of (1) ISO/TS
16949:2002 on design and
manufacture of Car Tuner and (2)
ISO 9001:2000 on production
and servicing of electronic
products, namely transformers,
intermediate frequency
transformers, antennas, filters,
coils, coil inductors, electrical
meters, dielectric filters, tuners,
tuner modules, wireless
modules, switching mode power
supplies, digital tuner modules
for DAB and digital amplifiers.
From time to time, the Group
received customers’
performance certificates that
signify recognition of the Group’s

efforts and appreciation of the
Group’s products.

The Company recognises the
need and the benefits of
cooperation between the
industry and universities. It
hopes to ride on the resources
of universities and certain
graduate schools to customise
trainings that can help develop
the business and management
expertise of its people for
competing globally. In return, the
Company provides consultancy
services, financial aids and
internship to students of the
universities.

Employee Health and Welfare

Caring about the health and
work safety of its staff, the Group
has appropriate safety systems
and measures in place to
minimize staff exposure to
potentially hazardous materials
or adverse work conditions. As
an equal opportunity employer,
the Group strives to provide a fair
work environment to employees
and does not tolerate any form
of harassment or discrimination
in respect of employment and
occupation. To retain the best
talents, the Group ensures its
employee remuneration
packages are competitive and
that rewards are linked with
performance excellence.
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With a view to nurture their
professional development, the
Group also provides in-house
trainings to employees, not only
to upgrade their professional
competency but also to further
efficiency in implementing
internal procedures and
enhancing process adherence,
while strengthening their
understanding of the Group’s
culture. To achieve better
communication within the
organisation and more
constructive interaction among
various divisions, the Group has
launched an internal seminar
presentation programme to
provide insights into its
operations and developments
within each division and
therefore broadening employees’
knowledge of the Group as a
whole. To encourage staff to
participate in the programme,
prizes will be rewarded to the
best presenters of the
programme.

The Group also encourages
employees to take external job
related courses and sponsors
such initiatives when
appropriate. As a part of the job
orientation, all new employees
are required to take programs on
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topics including internal control
and information protection, 1ISO
and quality management
system.

It also arranges regular health
checks for all employees to
ensure their health and therefore
productivity at work. In case of
sickness, employees are
protected by comprehensive
group medical insurance
policies. Retirement and
comprehensive pension funds
are also provided to employees
in accordance to relevant
legislations.

Environment and Community
The Company complies with the
requirements of ISO 14001:2004
on environmental management
system.

The Group also continues to
make sure that its products
comply with the European
Union’s environmental protection
guidelines including the Directive
on the Restriction of the use of
certain Hazardous Substances
in Electrical Equipment (“RoHS”)
for manufacturing activities. All
products manufactured by the
Group are leadfree and RoHS
compliant.

The Group also encourages
employees to save energy and
resources. To cut down on paper
consumption, it encourages
double-sided printing and
printing when necessary only. It
also relays energy saving tips to
staff members through a daily
learning program. During the
year, the Company also made
donations to charities to help the
needy.

On behalf of the management, |
would like to take this opportunity to
extend my gratitude to all the staff
for their dedication over the year. At
the same time, | also wish to express
my appreciation to our customers,
suppliers, business partners and
shareholders for their continuing
support. We will continue to dedicate
our efforts in order to generate
optimum returns for our shareholders
in the long run.

Yang Jai Sung
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate
governance for enhancing shareholder value and stakeholders
interests. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize quality board of directors, effective internal control,
stringent disclosure practices, an ethical corporate culture and
accountability to all stakeholders.

ATTENDANCE RECORD FOR THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN
2009

The number of Board and board committee meetings attended
by each director for the year ended 31 December 2009
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No. of meetings attended/held

BRUEEBIRY
Audit Remuneration Executive
Board Committee Committee Committee
Exg BEREES ¥yMEESg HITEES
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yang Ho Sung REEE KL 4/4 2/2 n/a n/a
NERA NE A
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Jai Sung 2EESLE 4/4 n/a 2/2 5/5
TE A
Mr. Woo Nam Jin BEPEE 4/4 n/a n/a 5/5
TE A TEmA
Mr. Lee Kyu Young TEREE 4/4 n/a n/a 5/5
NEmA TNEmR
Independent non-executive BV FEHITESE
directors
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon SIEREBL 4/4 2/2 2/2 n/a
TNE A
Dr. Han Byung Joon BREBT 4/4 2/2 2/2 n/a
NEmA
Mr. Kim Chan Su SHEKEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 n/a
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Set out below are the summarised key components of corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which
up to the latest practicable date comprises six members, coming
from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds as
shown in biographical details set out on pages 40 to 49 in this
annual report. The Board comprises non-executive director Mr.
Yang Ho Sung (Chairman), executive directors Mr. Yang Jai Sung
and Mr. Lee Kyu Young, and independent non-executive
directors Dr. Kim Chung Kweon, Dr. Han Byung Joon and Mr.
Kim Chan Su.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The attendance
record of individual board members during the year set out in
the table on page 32 of this report.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The
specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include: setting
the Group’s strategy and dividend policy, approving budgets,
reviewing operational and financial performance, approving
major investments and divestments, reviewing the internal
control system of the Group, ensuring appropriate management
development and succession plans in place, approving
appointments of and remuneration policy for directors and other
senior executives, approving corporate social responsibility
policies and ensuring effective communication with
shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong have been adopted;
appropriate accounting policies have been used and applied
consistently; and reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board is not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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As part of good corporate governance practice, a number of
board committees have been established. These committees
include three corporate governance related committees namely
Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee as well as one ad hoc Independent Board Committee
for advising on matters in relation to the continuing connected
transactions. Each committee operates within defined terms of
reference; these terms of reference are posted on the Company’s
website at www.kse.com.hk. Board committees report regularly
to the Board about their work and findings.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated certain authorities and responsibilities
to the executive directors, including the development of strategic
plans for consideration by the Board, implementation of the
strategies and policies of the Group as determined by the Board,
monitoring of the operating and financial results against plans
and budgets, guiding the Company in various corporate affairs.
The Executive Committee, formed by all of the executive
directors namely Mr. Yang Jai Sung (Chairman) and Mr. Lee
Kyu Young, meets from time to time when committee chairman
requires.

During the year, the Executive Committee met five times with
the attendance record of individual committee members set out
in the table on page 32 of this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors namely Dr. Han Byung
Joon (Chairman), Dr. Kim Chung Kweon and Mr. Kim Chan Su,
and one executive director namely Mr. Yang Jai Sung.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met twice with
the attendance record of individual committee members set out
in the table on page 32 of this report.
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The committee’s principal responsibilities are reviewing
remuneration packages of directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
structure. It also regularly reviews and guides the formulation of
the Group’s remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven compensation
commitment as well as market trend and industry norms. The
details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis
are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

No director takes part in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration.

According to the Group’s employment policy, nomination policy,
remuneration policy, training and development policy and
communication policy as formulated and adopted by
Remuneration Committee, the Committee reviewed
remuneration packages for directors and senior management
during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a separate nomination committee.
However, the nomination and appointment of new directors
would be administered by the Remuneration Committee under
the Company’s adopted director nomination policy regarding
the selection criteria and evaluation processes.

The policy’s objective is to ensure that the Board is properly
constituted with a balanced mix of skills, qualifications and
experiences to meet its fiduciary obligations to the Company
and its shareholders as well as to face the Company’s current
and emerging operating and strategic challenges and
opportunities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors namely Mr. Kim Chan Su
(Chairman), Dr. Kim Chung Kweon and Dr. Han Byung Joon,
and one non-executive director namely Mr. Yang Ho Sung.

During the year, the Audit Committee met twice with the external
auditors without the presence of any executive director. The
complete attendance record of individual committee members
set out in the table on page 32 of this report.
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The committee’s principal responsibilities are monitoring the
integrity of financial reporting, reviewing the internal control and
risk management systems, and reviewing the corporate
governance practices of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the 2008 annual
report and accounts as well as the 2009 interim report and
accounts, had oversight of the financial reporting and audit
processes, reviewed the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems, agreed the scope of
internal control review for 2009, discussed internal control review
report, conducted discussions with the external auditors on
financial reporting, compliance, and reported all relevant matters
to the Board.

AUDITORS

The financial reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set
out on pages 65 to 66 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
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Audit services 1Z B 7% 370
Non-audit services IEZERTS
Tax services T PR 75 -
Other services H A R 75 100

INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board is committed to seeking the best interests for the
shareholders of the Company. To support this purpose, an ad
hoc independent committee of the Board (the “Independent
Board Committee”) formed by Mr. Kim Chan Su (Chairman), Dr.
Kim Chung Kweon and Dr. Han Byung Joon, has been
established to consider and review matters in relation to the
continuing connected transactions of the Group and to advise
independent shareholders whether the transactions are fair,
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
shareholders. All members of the Independent Board Committee
are independent non-executive directors of the Company.
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THE SEPARATE ROLES OF THE
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Yang Ho Sung, and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Yang Jai Sung, is clearly defined and has been approved by the
Board. The Chairman provides leadership for the Board, ensures
the effectiveness of the Board and oversees the corporate
development; while the Chief Executive Officer, as head of the
executive directorate, is responsible for managing the business
development and strategic planning of the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
INDEPENDENCE

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among members of the Board except that Mr.
Yang Jai Sung is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Ho Sung.

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors in board
committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

Non-executive directors are appointed for specific terms. Mr.
Yang Ho Sung has his appointment with the Company as non-
executive director renewed effective 1 March 2009 for another
two years, and Dr. Kim Chung Kweon, Dr. Han Byung Joon and
Mr. Kim Chan Su, have their appointments with the Company
as independent non-executive directors renewed effective 11
October 2008 for another two years, all subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election of their directorship in the Company
as set in the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review is
determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risks management functions. Such annual review also
considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
The internal control review function reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Regular internal control review
reports are circulated to the Audit Committee members and
the Board in accordance with the approved scope.

During the year, the Audit Committee has kept under review
the effectiveness of the internal control system and has reported
regularly to the Board. The Audit Committee is satisfied that
the internal control system maintained by the Group is sufficient
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
Group’s assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition, and that transactions are properly authorised
and proper accounting records are maintained.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal
control in the year of 2009, and the Board confirms that the
code provision C.2.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Corporate Governance Code”) has been
complied with and no finding of a material nature requires the
attention of shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency and
protection of shareholders’ interest. The Company has complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2009.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company, having made specific enquiries, confirms that
throughout the year, all directors complied with the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
relevant employees who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information have been requested to comply with the provisions
of the Model Code.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly. An explanation of the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be provided to
shareholders at the commencement of general meeting, to
ensure that shareholders are familiar with such procedures. The
next AGM of shareholders will be held on Wednesday, 26 May
2010, the notice of which will be sent to shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Shareholders may
refer to the section “Corporate Information and Shareholders’
Calendar” in this annual report for information.

The management communicates continually with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Company’s
development. The Company practices timely dissemination of
information and makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk
contains the most current information, including annual reports,
interim reports, announcements, monthly returns and press
releases, and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

RXEETFEBERAT 39

ESETESRSZBRETH

FA ARBKEAERERRER - TEESY
BET EMRBMEA0ME 2 EMBETAES
EITEHF R ZIREST A (ML) » Mk
EFHRNERRB 2B A EHARERHH
REHRER 2 AHEER S WERE TR
FAESTRIRSC »

REEBE

EECEREARTESBICER - FTHREFH
HEBBRERHEAEBEENYBERAZFE
B MREASAIRBEFTEERRREER
MEEESHEERIBRER - ARARINSRER
AEHARRRRREREARERRER - U
WRSREPEEZERRF - A2F TEREAE
FREEHR2010F5H26H (E8=) 877 - B
RS REENHEM0ELERFHTFER
o RRARAFRAZ [ARER KR AR
RIZEBBER -

ERERFREASNMENEBIREEER 1M
FEREBEEBARABRREZETAARZE
B o RAREITREERER 2 EE R ERE
Wubwww.kse.com.hkEH B & FE R - BIEF
] PERS A% ARKREFEAR - I
RE B HAERIBRAE o




40 Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

Directors and Senior Management EERSEEE AR

CHAIRMAN & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TERFEHITES

YANG HO Sung RHE »

Mr. YANG Ho Sung, aged 61, is the chairman and a non-executive director of the
Company. He is mainly responsible for providing management advice on the
corporate development of the Group. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in
architectural engineering from Hanyang University in Korea. He gained 32 years
of experience in the electronics industry as a director in Kwang Sung Korea
and 27 years of experience as a representative director of Samkor Electronics
Co., Ltd. Since 1992, he has taken charge of the daily operation and
management in Kwang Sung Korea and was appointed as its representative
director. He joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Yang Ho Sung is the elder brother of
Mr. Yang Jai Sung.
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CEO & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
THARRUTES

YANG Jai Sung R#EE *

Mr. YANG Jai Sung, aged 50, is the chief executive officer and an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Yang also holds positions within the group as chairman,
director and general manager in Shenzhen Kwang Sung, chairman and director in
Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., and a director in Grand
Sonic Limited. He is primarily responsible for the overall corporate strategies and
business development of the Group, leading the Group’s management, including
management of the Group’s factories in the PRC. Externally, he is a director of
Korean Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree in law from
Yonsei University in Korea. Prior to joining the Group in 1991, he worked in Daewoo
Heavy Industries and Machinery Co., Ltd. for 9 years and has extensive experience
in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Yang Jai Sung is the younger brother of Mr.
Yang Ho Sung, and he is a director of Kwang Sung Korea, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITES

~—= LEEKyuYoung FEHK

Mr. LEE Kyu Young, aged 47, is the chief operating officer and an executive
director of the Company. He also holds position within the group as a vice-
chairman and director in Shenzhen Kwang Sung and as a director in Kwang
Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. He is mainly responsible for
international marketing, new business development and strategic planning of
the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from
Kwangwoon University in Korea. He has over 20 years of experience in world-
renowned international companies including LG Electronics (Information &
Communications Business Division) and Hewlett Packard, specialized in satellite
and wireless communication. He joined the Group in 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHTES

HAN Byung Joon ERZE e

Dr. HAN Byung Joon, aged 50, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2002. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Hanyang University, Korea, a master’s degree in
science from Tennessee Technological University, a master’s degree of
philosophy from Columbia University, a doctor of philosophy from Columbia
University, and graduated Advanced Management Program from Harvard
Business School, U.S.A. He has over 25 years of experience in semiconductor
research and product development in IBM, AT&T Bell Laboratories and Anam
Semiconductor, Inc. He is now executive vice president and chief technology
officer of STATS ChipPAC, Ltd. which is a leading service provider of
semiconductor design, assembly, test and distribution solutions and traded in
Singapore Stock Exchange. He also holds other directorships in iNEMI
(International Electronics Manufacturing Initiative) incorporated in Delaware for
advancing manufacturing technology, IPOS (Intellectual Properties Office of
Singapore) for fostering the creation, protection and exploitation of intellectual
properties, Simm Tech Co. Ltd. incorporated in Korea and listed in KOSDAQ,
and STATS ChipPAC Taiwan Semiconductor Corp incorporated in Taiwan and
listed in Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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KIM Chung Kweon £IE# = ot

Dr. KIM Chung Kweon, aged 54, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2002. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in geology from Seoul National University, Korea, a master’s degree in
business administration and a master’s degree in accounting from University
of Washington, U.S.A. He also completed his doctorate degree in accounting
at the University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A. Dr. Kim is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company which monitors the financial reporting function of
the Group. He has lectured at the University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A. He is a
professor at College of Business Administration in Ewha Womans University,
Korea and a visiting scholar in Department of Accounting of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He also serves as a member of the
IFRS International Advisory Committee at the Financial Supervisory Service in
Korea.
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Mr. KIM Chan Su, aged 42, has been appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company since September 2004. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Yonsei University in Korea and is a Certified Public
Accountant in Korea. He had worked as an auditor in Samil Accounting
Corporation, PricewaterhouseCoopers in Korea for over 12 years and currently
have been providing tax and accounting advisory services as professional
accountant in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SEEEBAER
HO Cheuk Yui AT 42 85

Mr. HO Cheuk Yui, Paul, aged 43, is a general manager and the
head of the Global Business Group of the Group. He is
responsible for sales and marketing activities in relation to non-
Korean based customers of the Group. Mr. Ho holds a
bachelor's degree in business administration with honours from
The City University of New York in the United States. He has
over 17 years of experience in sales and marketing of electronic
products. He joined the Group in 1995.

HONG Sang Joon

Mr. HONG Sang Joon, aged 41, is the treasurer, a general
manager, and the head of the Management Planning Group of
the Group. He is responsible for financial management and
corporate planning of the Group. Mr. Hong holds a bachelor's
degree majoring in Chinese language and Chinese literature and
minoring in business administration from Yonsei University in
Korea and a master's degree in business administration from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a CFA Charterholder and
Certified FRM having over 15 years of experience in investment,
restructuring, strategic planning and finance from Hansol group
companies and the Group. He joined the Group in 2002.

JANG Dong Jun

Mr. JANG Dong Jun, aged 53, is the director and the head of
the Electric Component Business Group of the Group. He is
responsible for overall business operations of the Group's radio
frequency ("RF") coils and transformer products of the Group.
Mr. Jang graduated from Cheong Il Technical High School in
Korea. He has over 34 years of experience in research in
electronic industry including 25 years of experience in developing
RF coil , transformer and antenna products in Kwang Sung
Korea. He joined the Group in 2005.
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JO Jung Ho

Mr. JO Jung Ho, aged 45, is a principal engineer and the head
of Production and Production Engineering Group of the Group.
He is responsible for production and production engineering in
Shenzhen Kwang Sung. Mr. Jo graduated from Gumi National
Electronics Technical High School in Korea. Prior to joining the
Group, he gained over 24 years of experience in electronic
industry including 12 years of experience in developing tuners
and unit electronic components in Kwang Sung Korea. He joined
the Group in 2005.

KIM Choon Gyum

Mr. KIM Choon Gyum, aged 52, is the director and the head of
Infomedia Research & Development 2 Group of the Group. He
is responsible for overall business operations of the wireless
solutions in the Group. Mr. Kim holds a bachelor's degree
majoring electronic engineering from Inha University in Korea.
Prior to joining the Group, he gained over 22 years of experience
in electronics companies including Maxon Electronics and
Motorola Korea, specialized in RF products including cordless
phones, mobile phones and Bluetooth products. He joined the
Group in 2008.

KIM Yeon Jun

Mr. KIM Yeon Jun, aged 45, is a general manager and the head
of Business Development Group of the Group. He is responsible
for new business development including WireTape™ business
of the Group. Mr. Kim holds a bachelor's degree majoring mass
communication from Korea University in Korea. Prior to joining
the Group, he gained 18 years of experience in IT industry. He
joined the Group in 2009.
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KO Byoung Hwan

Mr. KO Byoung Hwan, aged 43, is a general manager and
the head of Purchasing and Production Material Control
Group of the Group. He is responsible for procurement,
production planning, product shipment as well as inventory
management of Shenzhen Kwang Sung. Mr. Ko holds a
bachelor's degree in economics from Dongguk University in
Korea. He has over 15 years' experience in sales and
marketing of electronic products and management. He joined
the Group in 1994.

LEE Bae Sung

Mr. LEE Bae Sung, aged 47, is a general manager and the head
of Quality Assurance Group of the Group. He is responsible for
quality assurance of the Group's products. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor's degree in Industrial Engineering from Konkuk
University in Korea. Prior in joining the Group, he gained 20
years of experience in quality control and quality assurance in
electronic industry. He joined the Group in 2007.

LEE Don Gi

Mr. LEE Don Gi, aged 46, is a general manager and the head of
Infomedia Sales Group of the Group. He is responsible for sales
and marketing activities of composite components of the Group.
Mr. Lee graduated from Korea Port Logistics High School. He
has over 22 years of experience in electronics industry including
18 years in Kwang Sung Korea. He joined the Group in 2005.
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LIM Hee Jun

Mr. LIM Hee Jun, aged 37, is a chief engineer and the head of
Wireless Component Business Group of the Group. He is
responsible for overall business operations of the Group's
wireless component products. Mr. Lim was the industrial
undergraduate in mechatronics engineering from Korea
Polytechnics College in Korea. He has over 15 years of
experience in electronics industry including 13 years in Kwang
Sung Korea. He joined the Group in 2007.

PARK Jung Soon

Mr. PARK Jung Soon, aged 47, is a general manager and the
head of the Management Support Group of the Group. He is
responsible to supervise the purchasing, subcontracting and
inventory management in Korea. Mr. Park graduated from
Suncheon Technical High School in Korea. He has over 22 years
of experience in electronics industry including 19 years in Kwang
Sung Korea. He joined the Group in 2006.

SEO Pan Dong

Mr. SEO Pan Dong, aged 58, is a principal engineer and the
head of the Infomedia Research & Development 1 Group of the
Group. He is responsible for the research and development of
the RF Modules in Korea R&D Centre. Mr. Seo holds a bachelor's
degree majoring in electronic engineering from Pusan National
University in Korea. Prior to joining the Group, he gained 26
years of experience in LG Electronics (Information &
Communications Business Division), specialized in designing
and developing home, car and portable audio tuners. He joined
the Group in 2007.
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SUH Jin Won rERE

Mr. SUH Jin Won, aged 42, is a general manager and the head
of Operation Management Group of the Group. He is responsible
for administration and financial management in Shenzhen Kwang
Sung. Mr. Suh holds a bachelor's degree in law from Dongguk
University in Korea. He has over 13 years of experience in
electronic industry. He joined the Group in 1996.

SUNG So0 Earn

Mr. SUNG Soo Earn, aged 52, is a general manager and the
head of R&D Planning & Management Group of the Group. He
is responsible for overall R&D planning and control of the Group.
Mr. Sung holds a bachelor's degree in electronics and
communications engineering from Kwangwoon University in
Korea. Prior to joining the Group, he gained over 23 years of
experience in developing electronic devices such as PA modules
and PA MMIC, and RF modules mainly from LG Electronics
(Information & Communications Business Division). He joined
the Group in 2007.

YANG Jae Eun

Mr. YANG Jae Eun, aged 46, is a principal engineer and the
head of Infomedia Research & Development 4 Group of the
Group. He is responsible for the research and development of
the Group's RF module products in China R&D Center. Mr. Yang
holds a bachelor's degree in Electronic Engineering from Kumoh
National Institute of Technology in Korea. He has over 15 years
in electronic industry. He joined the Group in 2007.
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YOON Yong Seob

Mr. YOON Yong Seob, aged 46, is a principal engineer and the
head of Infomedia Research & Development 3 Group of the
Group. He is responsible for of the software solutions of the
products in the Group. Mr. Yoon holds a master's degree in
Electronic Engineering from Kwangwoon University in Korea.
He has over 20 years of software design experience in wireless
communication and mobile phones industry. He joined the Group
in 2009.

SIN Lai Lan

Ms. SIN Lai Lan, aged 42, is the company secretary of the
Group. She serves to monitor the corporate compliance matters
and participates in the enhancement of the corporate
governance practice of the Company as well as the development
of corporate affairs of the Group. She was educated in Canada
and holds a bachelor’s (honours) degree with distinction from
The University of Western Ontario and a master's degree from
University of Guelph in economics. She is a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK and
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS), and
she holds a Practitioner’s Endorsement issued by HKICS. Ms.
Sin has over 13 years of company secretarial experience gained
from main board issuers and legal firms. She joined the Group
in 2002.
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We will continue to
develop and launch
iInnovative products
that will drive our
future growth
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The directors submit herewith 2009 annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of electronic components. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
for the year by business and geographical segments is set out
in note 7 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

EZE A NER_ZTTNFFREBE_ZT
NE+ZA=+—BLFEZLECMBERE

2% -

FEXK

ARRIZEBRGREERHEE T LI - W
BRAZEBXB R EMFBEHNM B HREN
18 » NEBAFEARER XM MRS F
ZRIVEHN R MRMEET

TEFEFRHAER

RAFBFEEAN  BRASEIERFRMtEED
PIEEAEEFEERMNEEREZERNT ¢

Percentage of
the Group’s total

HAREEAERDHL
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer ISP 19%
Five largest customers in aggregate A RE P 4B 45%
The largest supplier BAMER 6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A RMHER L 21%

Kwang Sung Korea, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and beneficially owned by certain directors and their
associates, is one of the customers and suppliers of the Group.
Further details are set out in the sections “Directors’ Interests
in Contracts” and “Connected Transactions” in the Report of
the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the
directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 67 to
164 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 June 2009 (2008: HKO.5 cents per share). The Board of the
Company does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of
this annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,920,000 (2008: HK$2,104,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year, the Company newly issued 8,534,933 ordinary
shares. Overall, there were 323,896,933 ordinary shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2009.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note
29 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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DIRECTORS -

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this AW RFEAREAREBRERZESH
report were: T~

Non-executive director: FEHMITES :

Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman) REER R E (£/F)

Executive directors: BITES :

Mr. Yang Jai Sung REESE

Mr. Woo Nam Jin (resigned on 29 January 2010) BEEAE (RZE—ZEF-A=ZTHLBEMD
Mr. Lee Kyu Young FERESE

Independent non-executive directors: BYEHITES :

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon B IFEELT

Dr. Han Byung Joon BRNEE LT

Mr. Kim Chan Su TEAKRLE

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of BIBEARE 2 EBERMAE101E - =R
Association, Mr. Lee Kyu Young and Mr. Kim Chan Su shall retire SERSEFREEBREE AR RRAF K
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being CHESR  METERTREBREET -
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EERBEN

All directors have signed two-year service contracts with the FIBESEHMARAEI I MFHREEL - &
Company, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election of BEHARBERALNRZEABER M RESR
their directorship in the Company as set in the Company’s RABEZRBRBEET -

Articles of Association.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM BRI ERzcBRRBFRGhET 2 EEM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by AT AN RQ A SRR E B A R —F RAA]
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without EEREE (—RETERERIN 2BRTELE
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory Z KW RIEE K -

obligations.



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code (collectively “discloseable interests”) were as
follows:

KEBFTEBERAT 505

EERTHRAERN KRS - HE
BROREZEERKXR

RZTETAFE+_A=+—H  BEZSLH
EEDIE35216B T HEFHELEMATE - SR
BIZETARARRREBBHARZMERA
BB EHZEBR - ARRERES R
THRBREN AR B SRAEMEEEEE (&R E
%R EIEEBIEXVED) 2 D - HERG RE
SRR ZEESAR (BB ATHEER])
m

(i) Interests in Issued Shares of the Company (i) XABFECBITROES

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EREEIBIZEER
Interest of Total % of
Beneficial controlled number of total
owner corporation shares held issued shares
TEEEE BEz e BT
Name of director EERZ ERBEEA 2R R4 B R EE R
Mr. Yang Jai Sung REERE 114,582,000 59,500,000 174,082,000 53.75%
(note 1)
(Ft3E1)
Note: BMsE -
(1) Mr. Yang Jai Sung and his relatives are approximately interested (1) HBRREEXERHEFBEHAEEXED

in 79.5% of the issued share capital of Kwang Sung Korea BITRAZHT79.5% s - LR ESR R
and therefore Mr. Yang Jai Sung is deemed or taken to be HEEpms  REEXEHEBARIER
interested in these ordinary shares which are beneficially owned BHEEREERSBAE 2SR 2
by Kwang Sung Korea for the purpose of the SFO. = o

(i) Interests in Underlying Shares of the Company (i) AAFEEARSGDER

BBEARNR 2 BRETE - ARFIZES

5/ SITRBREEER TERE - B

BN T XIS —& -

The director and/or the chief executive of the Company
had been granted options under the Company’s share
option scheme, details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of BRENEREIN RZZBETZANFTA=+—
the directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their H BEARRZEEN HITREHIFES
respective associates had any other discloseable interests as SEREATHEEMNAMBETRE ZRE
required. i ©

B
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16 June 2003
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees, directors, consultants or advisors
of the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The purpose of this scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to employees and eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years ending on 15 June
2013, after which no further options can be granted. The
exercise price of each share option is the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
options are exercisable progressively between one to three years
from the date of grant and will expire at the end of a period to
be notified by the Board to each option holder upon the grant
of option, and in any event, such period shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
Subject always to the above overall limit, the directors may grant
options under the share option scheme, generally and without
further authority, in respect of such number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the share option scheme not exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 18 May 2005, being the date
passing the resolution regarding the refreshment of general limit
of options. For the purpose of calculating the above, options
lapsed in accordance with the share option scheme shall not
be counted.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue under
the share option scheme as at 31 December 2009 was
31,330,000 shares which represented 9.67% of the issued share
capital of the Company at 31 December 2009. In respect of the
maximum entitlement of each participant under the scheme,
the total number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue, unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting.
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RRABNKEBEITRAZ30% - £ —EHETINA
HRRBZBERT  EFE—RENRTHAE
—SEREBRT  REREFSIRLZAER
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RER-_ZETRHFRA+/N\A BIEHERE—
MREZABEBBZAM DBHITRAZ
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At the beginning of the year, a director of the Company held the
following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the
Company granted at nominal consideration under the share
option scheme of the Company (market value per share at 30
April 2009 and 31 December 2009: HK$0.370 and HK$0.415
respectively). The options are unlisted. Each share option gives
the option holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of HK$0.1 each of the Company. During the year, the said share
options lapsed at expiry, and as at 31 December 2009, there
was no share option of the Company being outstanding.

No. of share options

KEBFTEBERAT O

REEFRBRE  ARA—BEZRBEAQRE
i BN RBARBER K AT REARE R
Dz BERE  WIHEUTEZ R2ETNFN
AZ+BR-_EEAF+_A=+—BEKM
& : D3150.3708 T 0.41587T) - B
W ET o S BARER TRERERE AER
REARNBFREEOAB T LRI - 6
A Tt ERESE AEIEmAR > MR ==
TNEFE+-A=+—H » KABWEEKRITE
2 AR AE o

(note 3)
BREHA
(K&E3)
Outstanding Market value
Outstanding on Exercised Lapsed as of Exercise per share
1 January during during 31 December Option price at date of
2009 the year the year 2009 Date of grant exercise period per share grant
RZBENE RZBENE
Category or 282 -fA-H t-A=t-H 5k HELAEZ
name of participant LY e HRATE ERfifE ERBAR HARTE REAH BRETES EE SRHE
HKS HKS
AT B
Executive director BTES
Mr. Woo Nam Jin BEYRE 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - 6 May 2004 1 May 2005 to 1.666 1.63
(note 4) “EIMERARR 30 April 2009
(i) ZETRERA-RE
“ZETNERAZTE
Notes: B 5 -

—

) The options granted to the director are registered under the name of
the director who is also the beneficial owner.

(2)  The maximum percentage of the share options being exercisable is
determined in stages as follows:

On or after 1st year anniversary 30%
On or after 2nd year anniversary another  30%
On or after 3rd year anniversary another  40%

(3)  Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
in the Company covered by the options under the share option
scheme.

(4) 1,000,000 share options held by an executive director automatically
lapsed on 1 May 2009.

(1) BTEFZBEBREDUEFEZHERERL  MET
ZaBEAA o

(2 RERSIDBERENTITEZESADLAT

R—EAFEHHZE 30%
PREATE B 2% BN 30%
R=—BAFEHH & BN 40%

() BREHAEERESITEBRESR ZART
HERD#E -

(@) —HRPTEF - HEEHE 21,000,000 EREDS
REZZAFHRA-—BEBEA -
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Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
3(I)(ii) and note 35 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS'’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:

EREERERSHEREZ FHEEZ S5
R E B Bl 5 B 7% R 31 B 51 3(1) (i) & B =%
350

R Bt ESN - ANR B S A R SR AN F
EAREASETLERNZHE  BEARRES
EWEFEZRBIART T /\FZ FRAZEAR
NE AT EAE A B 2 B HEZF M EAE

R -

FERRREMALREAD
HERGO 2 ERRKXR

RZTETAEFE+_A=+—"8 BEARAREE
SITEABE YN - THIA TR G 2 B K&
ARG T  BEARBIREES KBS KNS
336IEEFHEF BRI EMELRR
Bl ZEREOABIMT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

SREEIBTZLER

No. of ordinary Nature of % of the issued

shares held interest/Capacity share capital

BFEZ  $:3:3-04 HEERTRA

Substantial shareholders FERR EEREE EL) BED

Madam Kang Mi Young (note 1) ZERRLL (1) 174,082,000 Interest of spouse 53.75%
[P 5

Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. ~ #AGHKES 59,500,000 Beneficial owner 18.37%
ExEBA

Mr. Kent C. McCarthy Kent C. McCarthyt 4 19,430,000 Interest of controlled 5.99%
(“Mr. McCarthy”) (note 2) (IMcCarthyt 4 1) (Ff5E2) corporations
REH AR #a

Notes: P 5T

(1) Madam Kang Mi Young, the wife of Mr. Yang Jai Sung, was deemed
to be interested in these ordinary shares in which Mr. Yang Jai Sung
was deemed or taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.

(2)  Mr. McCarthy was deemed or taken to be interested in these ordinary
shares through his indirect 100% control in five funds.

(1) ZXRLEIRRERXEZET REFRHE
EOImE - R AEEREERERE R
RREAEAZZEE B B

(2)  McCarthy5c £ E B R A EE S FH 2 100%H
BEESRMERARERAERAZSTERR 2B

= o



Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

In February 2009, the Company announced its restoration of
public float rate of not less than 25% after the transfers of
33,118,000 shares of the Company from a controlling
shareholder to public shareholders. Since then, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Kwang Sung Korea is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and one of the Company’s customers and suppliers. Mr. Yang
Jai Sung and his relatives were interested in these arrangements
as a shareholder holding approximately 79.5% interest in the
share capital of Kwang Sung Korea.

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements under
the heading “Material Related Party Transactions”, there were
no other contracts of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the director of the
Company namely Mr. Yang Jai Sung is both shareholder and
director of Kwang Sung Korea, whose businesses compete or
are likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
businesses. The principal businesses of Kwang Sung Korea are
as follows:

(1) Research, design and product development of electronic
components and related products and manufacturing of
electronic components for electronic appliances and
communication equipment through the factory operated
by Kwang Sung Korea (the “KSK Factory”) exclusively for
orders placed directly with Kwang Sung Korea and to be
sold in the Korean market but subject to the terms and
limited to the scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking
and the Research and Development Service Agreement.

(2) Sales, marketing, purchasing and distribution of electronic
components for electronic appliances and communication
equipment, but subject to the terms and limited to the
scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking and the
Commission Agreement.

In relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, each of Kwang Sung Korea, KS-
Tech Group Corporation, and Mr. Yang Jai Sung (“Mr. Yang”)
has entered into the Deed of Undertaking in favour of the Group
to the effect that for so long as Kwang Sung Korea and/or any
of its subsidiaries, Mr. Yang and/or the companies controlled
by Mr. Yang are beneficially interested, directly and indirectly,
whether individually or taken together, in 20% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company, Kwang Sung Korea and
Mr. Yang will not, and Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang will
procure that none of its subsidiaries (other than the Group) and
the companies controlled by him (other than the Group),
respectively, will engage or otherwise be involved in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with any of the businesses carried out by any member
of the Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”) in
any of the regions in which the Group is engaged in and
undertakes the Restricted Business (such regions include Korea
and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).
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Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to first refer all customers’ orders
of electronic components production received by Kwang Sung
Korea from its customers (subject to certain conditions) and
the results and/or products developed by the product design
and research and development centre of Kwang Sung Korea
and the KSK Factory and/or any intellectual property right in or
arising from such results and/or products to the Group on terms
in accordance with the Deed of Undertaking, the Commission
Agreement and the Research and Development Service
Agreement, respectively.

According to the supplementary Deed of Undertaking effective
20 September 2005, KS-Tech Group Corporation is no longer
a party to the Deed of Undertaking as it is no longer beneficially
owned by Kwang Sung Korea.

Pursuant to the supplementary deed inter alia, for so long as
Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries and Mr. Yang
and/or any of the companies controlled by him are beneficially
interested, directly or indirectly, whether individually or taken
together, in 10% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company, Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang will not, and Kwang
Sung Korea and Mr. Yang will procure that none of its
subsidiaries (other than the Group) and the companies controlled
by him (other than the Group), respectively, will engage or
otherwise be involved in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with any of the
Restricted Business in any of the regions in which the Group
engages in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such
regions include Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).

The transactions with Kwang Sung Korea are set out in the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”. There has been
no material change in directors’ interests in any competing
business subsequent to 31 December 2009.
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ESEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with Kwang Sung Korea, which constituted continuing
connected transactions (the “connected transactions”) as
defined in the Listing Rules.

(1)

In the ordinary course of business, the Group sold
electronic components to Kwang Sung Korea for resale
to ultimate customers. These transactions were entered
into on normal commercial terms and on prices and terms
comparable to the prevailing market rate or practice.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, sales of
electronic components to Kwang Sung Korea amounted
to HK$2,246,000 (2008: HK$5,318,000).

Pursuant to a Commission Agreement dated 4 Nov 2008,
Kwang Sung Korea referred a number of customers to
the Group. These customers place orders directly with the
Group and upon completion of the production, the Group
sold the electronic components to the customers directly.
The Group paid Kwang Sung Korea a referral commission
which represents not more than 2% of the total sales to
these customers. The referral commission rate was
comparable to the referral commission rates payable by
the Group to independent third parties and was on terms
comparable to the prevailing market rate or practice.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, referral
commission paid/payable by the Group to Kwang Sung
Korea amounted to HK$1,371,000 (2008: HK$3,474,000).

Pursuant to a Production Outsourcing Agreement dated
4 November 2008, Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to
produce the Products for the Company in ordinary and
usual course of business, on normal commercial terms
comparable to the prevailing market rate and practice after
arms length negotiations. Payment of the production fees
will be made in a manner agreed by the Group and Kwang
Sung Korea.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, production fees
paid/payable by the Group to Kwang Sung Korea
amounted to HK$1,659,000 (2008: HK$714,000).
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At the extraordinary general meeting of 5 December 2008, the
Company has sought approval from the independent
shareholders of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions up to the limits specified in the new caps for each
of the three financial years ending 31 December 2011 mentioned
below:

KEBFEBERAT 63

ZTZNFT - ARRTZRRERIARE
NAEBRBIARIETERRRFEFER
CERESA TXABE—T——F+ =
THE=EBRFE2H LR

Annual cap on the aggregate value
of the transactions for
financial years ended/ending 31 December

E/RBE+-A=+—-HL

HRFERSBEEZZFELR
2009 2010 2011
Transactions X5 “EENE BB Z—B—-—-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET
Sales of Products by the Group AEEHEZZTEM
to Kwang Sung Korea TEHELE 10,200 11,200 12,300
Commission payable by the Group REEERLE
to Kwang Sung Korea e =P
for sales orders placed by the customers ZIHETERER
referred by Kwang Sung Korea BRLEZRE 5,200 5,200 5,200
Production outsourcing fees payable REEENEBRLE
by the Group to Kwang Sung Korea ZINBEEEHR 5,800 7,100 8,700

The directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, of the Company have reviewed the connected
transactions and confirmed that:

(1) the connected transactions have been entered into:
() inits ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms (to the extent that
there are comparable transactions), or, where there
are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than those
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(i) on the relevant agreement terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of independent
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

(2) the connected transactions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2009 have been conducted such that
the aggregate amount for each type of the transactions
has not exceeded the respective caps set out above.
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The Company’s auditors have confirmed in a letter to the board
of directors that:

()  the connected transactions had received the approval of
the Company’s board of directors;

(i) there was an agreement in place governing each selected
transaction; and

(i) the connected transactions had not exceeded the
respective caps as set out above.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 165 of
the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Yang Ho Sung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

feksda

Shine‘ZOing]'

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF KWANG SUNG ELECTRONICS H.K.
CO. LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Kwang Sung
Electronics H.K. Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to
164, which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
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by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
26 March 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement melEEK
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEz—

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
BE-BENE BE_TTN\F
+t=A=+-8 +-A=+--~

IEEE LEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHERT FET
Turnover —E £ 8 592,280 797,912
Cost of sales SHE AR (517,780) (707,511)
Gross profit EF 74,500 90,401
Other income H b Y A 9 5,749 4,348
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (19,148) (25,014)
Administrative expenses THRAX (16,627) (16,745)
Research and development expenses i 2 f st (31,066) (89,259)
Other operating expenses HigEfx (10,100) (15,269)
Profit (loss) before taxation BREL AT R F (B518) 3,308 (1,538)
Taxation 18 10 (39,592) (760)
Loss for the year REEZFHE 11 (36,284) (2,298)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT ALTERIEARFEESE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZ N (35,774) (2,298)
Minority interests DEIR RS (510) -
(36,284) (2,298)
Dividends payable rEEEMSTF
to owners of the AAREEA
Company attributable ZBRE
to the year:
Interim dividend declared FAERZFERE 14(a)
during the year - 1,577
HK cents HK cents
AL Rl
Loss per share BREE 15
Basic EZTN (11.13) (0.73)
Diluted e (11.13) (0.73)
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2009

REZHERBER

BE_ZTNFT-_A=+—HFE

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
—ZEZhEF —ZTENF
+=—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Loss for the year REEZFHE (36,284) (2,298)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 EKE (FX)
(expense)
Exchange differences arising on ERE IR INETE T 2= &
translation of foreign operations ZIEH =% 6,907 (25,193)
Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of EEFHEERA LM
land and buildings held for own use  RiEF Z Z &k (E54h) 9,167 (3,879)
Deferred tax EER IR (826) (635)
Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of EHRBEER LI RIETF
land and buildings held for 2 Ber (B4t -
own use, net of deferred tax B EEFIE 8,341 (4,514)
Other comprehensive income REZHEMEERE (L) -
(expense) for the year, net of tax B MR HIE 15,248 (29,707)
Total comprehensive expense AEELHAXERE
for the year (21,036) (82,005)
Total comprehensive income ATATEEREE
(expense) for the year 2HEKE (FAX) 2% :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZ N (21,328) (32,005)
Minority interests LEIR R 292 -
(21,036) (82,005)




Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position
As at 31 December 2009
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31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008
RZZZhE HR-ZZ\E R-ZENEF
+ZA=t-B +tZA=1+-H —-A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3z TEx FEL FHL

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERRE 16 71,301 75,728 96,850
Investment property REME 17 4,100 - -
Goodwil HE 19 5,857 - -
Club memberships e 20 673 673 718
Intangible assets B EE 21 18,532 - -
Investments in equity securities RAEELE 22 - - -
Other receivables ER LG 25 - 616 -

Deposits for purchase of property, BENE  BEREE

plant and equipment i s 4,245 967 =
104,708 77,984 97,568

Current assets REBEE
Marketable securities HERS 2 - 7,840 -
Inventories c3 24 57,100 81,242 70,667
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 R E MR 25 143,013 107,050 123,773
Amounts due from shareholders JE R 5 3008 33 10,592 608 675
Short-term bank deposits EHPTER 26 - 20,139 26,505
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEEY 26 179,386 135,553 158,910
390,091 352,432 380,530

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ENESRAMER 27 85,537 64,035 78,427
Tax payables FERHE 42,712 5,207 3,137
Bank borrowing - due within one year RITEE - —FN3H 28 11 - -
128,360 69,262 81,564
Net current assets RBEEFE 261,731 283,170 298,966
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRNTDASE 366,439 361,154 396,534
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Cconsolidated Statement of e MR R &
Financial Position -
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZFFAFT-A=+—H
31/12/2009 31/12/2008 1/1/2008
RZZBENE R-ZZ\E R-TTN\E
+ZA=t-B +tZA=1+-H —R—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz TET TEL FAT
Capital and reserves EXR R
Share capital A 29 32,390 31,536 31,358
Reserves [ 319,173 327,609 363,478
Equity attributable to owners ADREBA
of the Company FE{h S 351,563 359,145 394,836
Minority interests DYREER 3,016 - -
Total equity R 354,579 359,145 394,836
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Bank borrowing - due after one year BOEE - —FRIG 28 83 = =
Derivative financial liabilties fTEeRBE 31 7,391 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEkEEE 32 4,386 2,009 1,698
11,860 2,009 1,698
366,439 361,154 396,534

The financial statements on pages 67 to 164 were approved FOTEF1ABE 2B HRREN T —TF=
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March A+t RBESESIAERKERT AT

2010 and are signed on its behalf by: HIEERKREE -
Yang Jai Sung REE

Director 2

Lee Kyu Young FER

Director -
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Statement of Financial Position B AR R R
As at 31 December 2009 R-_ZETZNF+_A=+—H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

—EEAF ZZEZN\F  1/1/2008
+=A +=—A —BENE
=+—-RH =+—HB —H—H

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
M 7E FExT FHETT FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 16 30,631 30,182 42 628
Investment property "EY % 17 4,100 = =
Interests in subsidiaries KB ARz 18 94,521 45,511 54,222
Club memberships s 20 673 673 718
Intangible assets EmEEE 21 10,869 = =
Investments in equity securities R AR BHIEE 22 - = =
Other receivables H i fE UL BR R 25 - 616 =
Deposits for purchase of property, EEWS - #e3
plant and equipment NMEE B 4,245 967 -
145,039 77,949 97,568
Current assets REEE
Marketable securities A ERES 23 - 7,840 =
Inventories BE 24 57,100 81,242 70,667
Trade and EWE 5
other receivables R B A BR K 25 142,804 107,047 123,773
Amounts due from shareholders JEE W A% 3R R 1A 33 10,592 608 675
Short-term bank deposits REIRITER 26 - 20,139 26,505
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEEY 26 178,391 134,997 158,910
388,387 351,873 380,530
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and EREZ &
other payables H A BR X 27 84,851 63,863 78,427
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB ARFIE 18 43,198 = =
Tax payables FERTBIIE 42,689 5,135 3,137
170,738 68,998 81,564
Net current assets RBEEFRE 218,149 282,875 298,966
Total assets less current EEHABERRE

liabilities a8fE 363,188 360,824 396,534
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Statement of Financial Position B AR R R
As at 31 December 2009 R-_ZETZNF+_A=+—H

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

“EEAE —TZNFE  1/1/2008
+=A +=-A —EBETNF
=+-A =+—H —A—H

Notes HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
B 7E FHT TBTT FETT
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital f& 7 29 32,390 31,536 31,358
Reserves 1 30 319,885 327,279 363,478
Total equity R 352,275 358,815 394,836
Non-current liabilities ERBEEB
Derivative financial liabilities TESmAasE 31 7,391 = =
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 32 3,522 2,009 1,698
10,913 2,009 1,698

363,188 360,824 396,534

The financial statements on pages 67 to 164 were approved FOTEFICAE LI BEREREN T —ZF=
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March A+ NEEZESSHERIRERET AT

2010 and are signed on its behalf by: PESREERE
Yang Jai Sung REE

Director EF

Lee Kyu Young TER

Director =
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Consolidated Statement of HEEREHR
Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEZNF+_A=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAREAEL
Properties
revaluation Minority
Share Share  Capital Other Contribution ~ reserve ~ Statutory Exchange  Retained interests
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve % reserve  reseve  profits  Sub-total U3 | Total

RE  ROEE EAEE EHEE HERE  EREE  LERE ERRE  REE Mt RREE -
(oted)  (noteb)  (otec)  (oted)  (notee)  (notef)  (noteg)
(WiFa)  (Wifo)  (Mke)  (WRd)  OWe) (W) (i)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér  TEr TEr TEx TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn TR TEAr TEn

At 1 January 2008 R-ZEN\E-A-H 3138 53,310 5,003 - - 14,559 6,489 - 284117 394,836 - 394,83
Total comprehensive FERRERTAE

expense for the year - - - - - (4,514) - (5193 (2298 (32,00) - (32,009)
Final dividend approved in EEZBHERERE

respect of the previous (Ht14(p)

year (note 14(p) = = = = - - - - s () - )
Shares issued under REEREIR

share option scheme a3 178 2,611 (483) - - - - - - 2306 - 206
Transfer from reserves BRGER - - - - - = 1,004 - (1,004 = = =
Forfature of share options B E - - (8918) - - - - - 3916 - - -
Dividend declared in respect KEERERRE

of the current year (note 14(a) (K 14a) - - - - - - - - (15 (157) - (15m)
At 31 December 2008 HNZEENE

t-A=1-H 31,536 55,921 604 - - 10,045 7498 (26193) 278739 369,146 - 369,145

Total comprehensive AEERENA

income (expense) for the year (R%) 8% - - - - - 834 - 6105 (35774 (213%) 29 (21,03)
Acquisttion of a subsidiary YE-RHEAT - - - - - - - - - - 30%B 305
Contrbutions from REE (H100)

shareholders (note 10(b)) - - - - 9,946 - - - - 9,946 - 9,946

Deemed acquisttion of addltional hE-BHEAA
interest in a subsidiary (note 36(0) 2R AEMER

(Hi3t36(0)) - - - 301 - - - - - 301 (301) -
Shares issued according REETEEERS
o a patent transfer H7fkih (Hkoo)
agreement (note 29(b) 854 2,645 - - - - - - - 3,499 - 3499
Lapse of share options BRESN - - (604) - - - - - 604 - - -
Transfer from reserves BRRER - - - - - - 4 - (941) - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZFENE
t-A=1-H 32390 58566 - 301 9,946 18,386 8434 (19.088) 242,628 351,563 3,016 354,579
Notes: B 5T
(a) Share premium (a) RMBREE
The application of the share premium is governed by section 48B of R iR Bz A BB (R ARG 2 48BK R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. g o
(b) Capital reserve (b) EBXRFE
The capital reserve comprises the fair value of unexercised share B BB RIESHH M FES() ()t AR (5 A ER
options granted to employees of the Company and other eligible ZIRMRA 2 SETBUR FTERE R TAR A E
persons that has been recognised in accordance with the accounting BEREMEBEBRATZHRITERREZARE

policy adopted for share-based payments in note 3(l)(ii). (ER
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

As at 31 December 2009

(c)

(d)

(e)

(M)

(9)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the acquisition/disposal of partial equity
interests of subsidiaries with minority shareholders without changes
in control. Details of the accounting policy are set out in note 3(r).

Contribution reserve

Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003. Details
are set out in note 39(a)(ii).

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in note 3(f).

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws
applicable to wholly-foreign owned investment enterprises,
subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are required to
set up a general reserve fund and appropriate at least 10% of
respective company’s annual profit after taxation, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the general
reserve fund until the balance of the reserve equals to 50% of its
registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses and
to convert into paid-up capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Company’s branch in Korea. At 1 January 2008 onwards, the
functional currency of the Korea Branch has been changed from
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) to Korean Won (“KRW”) following the
Korea Branch has substantially increased its trading activities in the
Korean market. Sales and purchases conducted in the Korean market
are denominated and settled in KRW. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(0).

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Hii# &

H b M D BUE S IRR IS, & B 2R Al
JBﬁ8Hx2K$“*‘ﬁﬁJLﬁExT% S R BB o &t
KA BEES() ©

k=g

tﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ?aﬂx??ﬁ_q T=FA=+HmHHE
ZEMNBEARBHE o FIBEEM M EE39(@)) °

MEEMLHE

MR B FEHTIRIEESNPIE A B Ea ALt
NEF 2 @A BREKILNER -

EERE

REBBERRIIEBERE 2P EARKANE (T4

Bl)ERE  ARRRHBEEELMEARFEER
Y REEES  WIERRRHRD10% 2 FER
BAEAH (P B st R A RROIET &) A — R
BES HEERFBEEBREEETMER0%R
1k —RFEGESTAERFABERERRER
B

BE 5

& iR B A RREANRRRE D AR M 5
BEELCELEZEH B-_TTNF—H—H
i AR S A E B AR INE R T IS A
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Cconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows GEEERE
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE

2009 2008
—EZAFE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Operating activities KESEE
Profit (loss) before taxation B 7 A1 v 1 (&5 18) 3,308 (1,538)
Adjustments for: TS IEELFAE
Interest income FLB A (1,888) (3,419)
Depreciation e 18,177 19,016
Amortisation X 855 45
Impairment loss on FEWE 5 RFUREEE
trade receivables 196 5,711
Increase in fair value of derivative MTEEmMEEC A EEEM
financial liabilities (517) -
Increase in fair value of BEMEZ AR BEEM
investment property (400) -
Write down of inventories WiEFEE 4,394 1,398
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - S R&ERE
plant and equipment (830) (172)
Unrealised gain on AHEJBHF 2 RERIK
marketable securities - (79)
Realised gain on AIHERSH B RN
marketable securities (14) -
Foreign exchange loss (gain) b 5 B 1 (as) 5,354 (15,226)
Operating cash flows before LEESFHAE
movements in working capital ZEEEBRE 28,635 5,736
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE R A (3% ) 19,748 (11,973)
(Increase) decrease in trade and FEUS E 5 & FAh BR 3R
other receivables (38 1) A (29,079) 13,216
Increase (decrease) in trade and B8 5 R A AR
other payables 380 Rk 4) 20,755 (14,392)
Cash generated from (used in) KEXBHE (FTA) 2RE
operations 40,059 (7,413)
Tax refund on reinvestment of B — BB A ]
profit derived from a subsidiary Zm A BB R - 3,280
Tax reserve certificate purchased BB @RS (6,424) (3,318)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BB EMER (1,463) (2,001)
Net cash from (used in) BESEER G (FTA)
operating activities ZHEEBE 32,172 (9,452)
Investing activities REES
Decrease in bank deposits RITIE FOR A 20,139 6,366
Proceeds from disposal of HEHERSFNR
marketable securities Z PS8 7,854 =
Purchase of marketable securities BATHERESFNK - (7,761)
Interest received 2 F B 1,888 3,192
Proceeds from disposal of property, &% « #22
plant and equipment P& T 1,861 203
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 36(a)) Y B — BT B8 1 &) (B 3E36(a)) (9,434) -
Acquisition of property, IR BE 2 - HES R ME
plant and equipment (6,048) (11,067)
Increase in deposits for purchase of BEE W% - #eE MR E
property, plant and equipment ZIEEIE N (4,245) (967)
(Advance to) repayment (MR ) RREEKIE
from shareholders (38) 67
Decrease in proceeds receivable 65 A% 7K 35 5 BT W BR
from disposal of equity securities 2 F1S sRIB R - 452
Net cash from (used in) BEZEME FA)
investing activities ZEEFE 11,977 (9,515)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—Z=Z

2009 2008
—ETAF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from shares issued BT TS RIE - 2,306
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITIERK (80) -
Dividends paid B E - (5,992)
Net cash used in METBHMACRESREE
financing activities (80) (3,686)
Net increase (decrease) HERFEEEYD
in cash and cash ZEm G D) 28
equivalents 44,069 (22,653)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZH%
at 1 January RASZEEY 135,553 158,910
Effect of foreign exchange Exgmms
rate changes (236) (704)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—HA=+—H
at 31 December ZESRESEEY 179,386 135,553
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report. The directors of the Company
do not consider any company to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company, however, the directors of the
Company consider the ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Mr. Yang Jai Sung.

The functional currency of the Company is KRW. The
functional currencies for its certain subsidiaries are
Renminbi (“RMB”) and KRW. For the purposes of
presenting the financial statements, the Group adopted
HK$ as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18.

—REH
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ERGMBRRR ([BRAT]) EH - AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

R REBIT 2BRE
MBREEA ((HEMB

wEER])

EAFE  AEERANRREMANLTHEE
BEFMAE ([HEESMAE]) Bz
ZIRFR] RAMERT R - BRI 2 E7] a2
B ([Fa] BRI BB M B REER]) -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied the following new and revised standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs BEAVBREERN ST N\FEEY
issued in 2008, except for CHEY) s R 2 2

HKFRSs (Amendments)

the amendment to HKFRS

5 that is effective for TNFEEH—H
annual periods beginning A BRB 2 F
on or after 1 July 2009 EHEAERZE

7B B 76 i 5 42 B

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 in relation
to the amendment to

FREV RS LR
(EETA)

55 Z ERTBRIN
RSB B E
BI] 22 39%5% 25 80EL
2z T

paragraph 80 of HKAS 39 NEB B ER
EEA| 2 B
Hong Kong Accounting Presentation of Financial BB EAE 1R BBHRRZ2T
Standard (“HKAS”) 1 Statements (ZZEZ+F
(Revised 2007) BAEET)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments

BB ERIF235 BEKAK

(—ZEZTLF
KAERT)

FEGRERERN AhEeM T AN

(Amendments) and Obligations Arising on REAGFER BREECEE
Liquidation EALACCHIEN)
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a BEMBRELERN HEBEBAGF - HEE
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled FIHREAEGH HIEBHWER
Entity or Associate R FE275% A2 IR E KA
(18ET )
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and BBV BHREEN HBEEGRIUS
Cancellations E25% (85T A0)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about EEMBREEDN HeMITARREZ
Financial Instruments F75% (IBFTA) WE
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments %ﬁf%ﬂﬁ?%i&%ﬁ—ﬂ” K
F 8%
HK (IFRIC) — Interpretation Embedded Derivatives 5% (BRI BHRE ATESRTE
(“Int”) 9 and HKAS 39 ZEBZEY)
(Amendments) — REZFEIR
REB G AR
395k (BT A)
HK (FRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes B (BBRMGHRE 85 8HEE
ZEBZE®)
— REBE135R
HK (IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the 5% (BRMBHRE BHhERERZ
Construction of Real Estate ZEZEY)
— R EE155
HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment B8 (BB BHmE BINEBIRE FRE
in a Foreign Operation REZE®) )
— RRBE165%
HK (IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from 5% (BERMBHRE RERPZEES
Customers ZEZE®) %

— REF185
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the financial
statements of the Group and the Company for the current
or prior accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the
financial statements.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision
set out in the amendments.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has changed the
basis of measurement of the Group’s segment profit or
loss. However, the adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted
in a re-designation of the Group’s reportable segments.

The Group and the Company have not early applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.
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SIARBNE (BREMBHRE ZEEE
B) R BREEARAT 2 WE -

ERTAREZHNE (BEBYUBEEER
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
part of improvements to
HKFRSs 2008'

Improvements to HKFRSs
20092

First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs'

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters®

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'
Classification of Rights

Issues*
Eligible Hedged ltems'

Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment
Transactions?®

Business Combinations’

Financial Instruments’
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®
Distributions of Non-cash

Assets to Owners'
Extinguishing Financial

Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1 January 2013,
with earlier application permitted. The Standard requires
all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows and (i) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvement to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1 January 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, leasees
were required to classify leasehold land as operating leases
and presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial
position. The amendments have removed such a
requirement. Instead, the amendments require the
classification of leasehold land to be based on the general
principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The
application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s and
the Company’s leasehold land.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting
presentation and disclosure only (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the financial position of the Group and the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and properties, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and
the minority’'s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment loss and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

St 765 R 3R B

BE-_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

FESFEER @

(b) #=HE6F @

DRV F YR R R 2 A
ROVBBRNAERCEE - BfE
RFRBEZFRABEZ LI

=
5 °

[k 5
WS A P EE A 2 BB AR AR &
T RRERE - DFEALALZS

SRR -

SUBERISM T - AN 5 B A T8
XENAHREL EREELEM
SBReELEMARNSRBMBESL
ZEE BEROEZIRSELE
A RIENEF R INETFREBT
% BALF] B B R RE R AETTRE R
A MRMBRFERKEMELE
BEMS  BEMIRCESEL
BRURZMBFEEERZATETR
BEAR - ERSELEM KM
TRONZEMZREER @ BE
EBRE LD RERMEZEMED R
ZEFEEZREE  ERREZ
BT RBEEREEZ LA DE
THREMZEMEE - BE 2 EM
BMEBREERCABRRT  -EE
1M 7 78 2 Rl (B S 18 1 & IR BE 1R A
B[ e

REEHBARSELBENR - 58
HEBRSR AT ARGENMEEE
ZEH e



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of
such intangible assets is their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at
revalued amounts, being their fair value at the
date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation
of intangible assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reserves a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognise in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an intangible asset is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated and the Company’s statements
of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are
classified into one of the following categories,
including investments in equity securities, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
designated as marketable securities and loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include marketable
securities.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group and the Company
manage together and have a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Investments in equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading, including
marketable securities, are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair values cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(i)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group and the Company commit to
purchase/sell the investments.

LLoans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from
shareholders, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment loss (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s and the Company’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(€)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on investments in equity securities
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities are generally classified
as derivative financial liabilities and other financial
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(€)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising on
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid
on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowing are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derivative financial instruments

For derivative financial instruments, the Group
measures the goods or services acquired and the
liability incurred at the fair value of the liability. At the
end of the reporting period, the liability is remeasured
at its fair value until the liability is settled, with any
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(€)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group and
the Company have transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amounts, being their fair
values at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation:

° freehold land and buildings; and

° land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under
an operating lease (see note 3(h)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 3(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in reserves. The
only exceptions are as follows:

o when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

o when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or fair
value of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Research and development expenditure

Research and development costs comprise all costs
that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such costs
as an asset are generally not met until late in the
development stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are generally
recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group and the Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

The Group and the Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Leasing (Continued)

(i)

Leasehold land and buildings

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the
purpose of lease classification, unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, in which case, the entire
lease is generally treated as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are
accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company review the carrying amounts of their
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

()

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.

Club memberships

Club memberships are stated in the consolidated and
the Company’s statements of financial position at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation of club memberships with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful life of 20 years. The
period of amortisation is reviewed annually.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(i)).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at the grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium) or
the option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETEHEw

(Continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued) () EEER @
(i) Share-based payments (Continued) (i) UBRHGHREEZ 5% ()
Share options granted to employees BT EE 2 EIRE

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at the grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium) or
the option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).

Share options granted to consultants/advisors

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the
goods or services received. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (capital reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless goods and services qualify for
recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m

) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group and the
Company are able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Taxation (Continued)

(n)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group
and the Company expect, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownerships. Revenue is after
deduction of trade discounts and returns.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Scrap sales

Scrap sales is recognised when the goods are
delivered to the customers.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETEHEw

(Continued)

(0) Foreign currencies (Continued) (0) & (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s and the Company’s net investment in foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
financial statements and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
and the Company’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group and the
Company (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the exchange reserve).

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on a acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(@

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which
item is derecognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

The Group regards the acquisition/disposal of partial
equity interest of subsidiaries from minority
shareholders without changes in control as
transactions with owners of the Company. When
additional equity interest in a subsidiary is acquired,
the relevant share of the carrying value of the
subsidiary’s net assets deemed acquired is recorded
in equity (other reserve). When partial equity interest
in a subsidiary is disposed of to minority interest, any
difference between the proceeds received and the
relevant share of minority interest is also recorded in
equity (other reserve).

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
S0 as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 3(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. AP BEERZZ2EER
UNCERTAINTY R

In the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting dates
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of tangible assets

The Group and the Company review the carrying
amounts of the assets at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of
impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cashflow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value in use and
provide for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment
loss and affect the Group’s and the Company’s net
asset value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(@)

Impairment of tangible assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgment is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. An increase or decrease in the
above impairment loss would affect the loss in the
year and in future years. Impairment of approximately
HK$196,000 (2008: HK$5,711,000) has been
recognised for the year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Impairment of patents

Determining whether patents are impaired requires
an estimation of the value-in-use of the patents. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the patents and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(d)

(e)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group and the Company perform regular review
of the carrying amounts of inventories with reference
to aged inventories analysis, expected future
consumption and management judgment. Based on
this review, write down of inventories will be made
when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in technology and market conditions, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and
profit or loss could be affected by differences in this
estimation. During the year, the Group and the
Company wrote down of inventories approximately
HK$4,394,000 (2008: HK$1,398,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group and the
Company carefully evaluate tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Details of taxation are set
out in note 10.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgment is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Details
of deferred tax are set out in note 32.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(f) Fair value of derivative financial liabilities

As disclosed in note 31, the fair value of the derivative
component of the liabilities at the measurement date
was determined using option pricing models.
Application of option pricing models requires the
Group to estimate the prominent factors affecting the
fair value, including but not limited to, the expected
life of the derivative instruments and the expected
volatility of the market price.

Where the estimation on the abovementioned factors
is different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the derivative financial instruments in the period in
which such determination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s and the Company’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. The
Group’s overall strategy remain unchanged from prior year.

The Group and the Company actively and regularly review
and manage their capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group and the Company generally finance the
operations with internally generated cash flows. As of 31
December 2009 and 2008, the Group and the Company
have no significant outstanding borrowing. Cash and cash
equivalents are in excess of net debt which is defined as
trade and other payables and insignificant bank borrowing.

St 765 R 3R B

BE-_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

T EERZZ2EER
TR @)

) TTEEmBABEz2IREE

HANMI S - BEZITAET
Ao ERFERZAAEBETD
A EEBEAETE - AEBNE
REYEEEEARARATIERE
AREEZAZ  ERE8HE (ERR
R TETAZ A FHEMEZE
HR R o

fidd Lt R &= 2 fHEF R R RIS At B
A EBERSTEETHEITLE
TRTAZAABEAMNIERE -

EAEREE

REBRARBEREAZBZBER
[EAREERAN R BRI RS

BEE - tmEBRRARBKFRNEZE
m MRS EBURESSERANZRE -
HERIRAER TR - AEE 2 BEERE
HEFHFTIE -

AREE R AR EIER N E S E AR
s REE - MERRBRE®RERLT
Al RE IR 2 s B B/KF R R i 2 B
WU IR 2 b R R AR 2 TR B AS- P18 - 0
JEREPIRIR 2 BB B RNRBIELBE -

REBRARB —MUARNTEEZR ST
ERHEEMTES N_ZETNFR -
ZETNF+A=+—8  xEEREKR
A EEAREEZEE - REIMFE

HekReFEVHBLAEFERE
RENE S REMBRTIARDERITE

B) -



kEEBFEBERAT 109

St 765 R 3R B

BE-_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TMITHE
(@) Categories of financial instruments () €EMIAESE
The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FABTT
Financial assets ERMEE
Investments in equity securities IR ARFEHFRE - =
Marketable securities AIHERES - 7,840
Loans and receivables B R U ER R
(including cash and (RREcKASEED)
cash equivalents) 330,913 269,303
330,913 277,143
Financial liabilities = =
Liabilities measured BEHKNAFTEZBE
at amortised cost 85,035 63,148
Derivative financial liabilities ESRBE 7,391 -
92,426 63,148
The Company
FiNNE|
2009 2008
—EZAFE —EE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FETT
Financial assets SREE
Investments in equity securities IR AR FHRE - =
Marketable securities Al HEESH = 7,840
Loans and receivables BER N EUWERER
(including cash and (BREAEeRREZEED)
cash equivalents) 329,709 260,904
329,709 268,744
Financial liabilities EREE
Liabilities measured REHEKAGTECBE
at amortised cost 127,367 100,562
Derivative financial liabilities ESRBE 7,391 -
134,758 100,562
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include marketable securities,
investments in equity securities, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from shareholders, short-
term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables, derivative financial liabilities and
bank borrowing. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group and the
Company due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group and the
Company is arising from the carrying amount of
respective recognised financing assets as stated in
the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit terms granted by the Group and the
Company to its customers generally range from one
to three months. New customers are normally
required to trade on a cash basis. Credit is offered to
existing customers following an established payment
record. Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group and the Company do not obtain collateral
from customers for the year ended 31 December
2009. A Korean customer who provided its self-
owned property located in Korea for the year ended
31 December 2008 as a collateral against an amount
owed to the Group and the Company of
KRW262,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,611,000). For the year ended 31 December
2008, no impairment was recognised for the amount
of approximately HK$506,000 and HK$625,000 due
from this customer had been overdue for three
months and six months, respectively.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
and the Company have a certain concentration of
credit risk as 19% (2008: 17%) and 44% (2008: 52%)
of the total trade and bills receivables was due from
the Group’s and the Company’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group and the Company have delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group and the
Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s and the Company’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 61% (2008: 59%) of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2009.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s and the Company’s policies are to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €T A @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EBIEEMEREBERBE (@)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEBELERE (B)
The Group rEE
2009 2008
ZEENE ZE3)\F
Carrying
amount
After and total
Within  After 1 year 2 years Total Within - undiscounted
{yearor  butwithin  but within undiscounted Tyearor  cashflows
Non-derivative on demand 2 years 5years  cash flows Carrying  on demand BEER
financial liabilities -ER -E4 MER RER amount R AERRE
FiTEEHAR IREX  BRER BEER BEMELT BEE  SEEk REgH

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-0 TEn TEn -0 TEn TEL TR

Trade and other payables [T HREMER 84,84 - - 84,84 84,841 63,148 63,148
Bank borrowing RIS 119 85 - 204 194 - -
84,960 85 - 85,045 85,035 63,148 63,148

Derivative - gross settlement 1% -B8RE
Derivative financial liabilties TEERAR - - 7,391 7,301 7,301 = -

The Company i /N=|
2009 2008
“EENE “23)\E

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
After  and total After  and total
Within After 1 year 2 years undiscounted Within 1 year  undiscounted
Non-derivative 1yearor butwithin but within cashflows  Tyearor  butwithin  cash flows
financial liabilities ondemand  2years  Syears REER ondemand 2vears  HRAER
FiTEeRaR -ERg -F% WER AEEEE Em & RYERS

BEX EmEM  BEFR  REAT  AEEX EWEFR REEH
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'00
TRn  TEx TEr TR TEr  TATL  TEn

Trade and other payables ERBARALER 84,169 - - 84169 63116 - 63116
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERRBAARE 43,198 - - 43,198 - Y46 37446

121,367 - - 121,367 63,116 37,446 100,562
Derivative - gross settlement % -BREE

Derivative financial liabilties TEERAE - - 7,301 7,391 = - =
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

In order to manage the above liquidity demands, at
31 December 2009, approximately HK$179,386,000
(2008: HK$155,692,000) and HK$178,391,000
(2008: HK$155,136,000) of the Group’s and the
Company’s assets are held in cash respectively.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable rate bank borrowing (see note
28 for details of this borrowing). It is the Group’s and
the Company’s policy to keep its borrowing at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The impact of bank borrowing is
insignificant.

The Group and the Company are exposed to fair
value interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns
interest income on bank deposits.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points (2008: 10 basis
points) in interest rates for bank deposits, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s and the Company’s loss after
taxation and increased/decreased the Group’s and
the Company’s retained profits by approximately
HK$179,000 and HK$178,000 (2008: HK$156,000
and HK$155,000) respectively. Other components of
equity would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss for the year
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.
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AEREFARBESE R RZZ
ENF+_A=+—8 " AEEX
NAE49179,386,0008 7T (ZEZE
NE 1 155,692,000 7T) &
178,391,000 8 L (ZEZ )\ F :
155,136,000/870) < B E 2 Bl AR
SHREE -

45 2 B
AR

A& B EY BIRTTERB BN
RamMEmEE (BREEFERN
it28) « AEBEMARBWEKTH
T—?E/ﬂzu{ﬁ KIAKE 2 A BEF XE

RRERKE - RITEEZZEMD
E;E"

AEBRARFRRIREE BRI E
H&AZ%ETTT;A??QQ?FTE%'J?
[
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FIEEMEETENERT (A5
BITERZFE2A LA,/ TH10
EEZ (T N\F - 10EEE) -
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W B BRI
ﬁu//w\” #49179,000% T &
178,0008 T (ZEZ& )\ F :
156,000/ 7T X% 155,000/8 7T) ° F|=R
BT T EMEEES
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A | B BURKE 9 T RBUR IR AR ) 2
PREBRPREERHELEEBFA
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6. TR H @)
BRREREEEERBE @

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Equity price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in unlisted equity
securities (note 22), marketable securities (note 23)
and derivative financial liabilities (note 31). Their
performance is assessed at least bi-annually based
on limited information available to the Group and the
Company together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s and the Company’s long
term strategic plans.

Equity price sensitivity

There is no significant exposure of equity price as all
securities are either disposed or fully impaired or no
material fluctuation for the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008.

Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to
currency risk primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables and bank
balances and borrowing that are denominated in a
foreign currency i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to the
risk are primarily United States Dollar, Japanese Yen,
Renminbi and Korean Won. The Group and the
Company ensure that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purpose, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong Dollar, translated
using the spot rate at the year end rate.

15 E B ()
(B iz

REERARRAKE I ETBRA
FH (KizE22) « Al HEFHF (Wt
23) RETHE S Eﬂi@ﬁ (Mf7E31) M mE
RERR - BEZRBENIEBASE
ERANBIBZERER LUK
HEHAREE KRR R RIARER

B2 AEREE X FFE— K-
R EHEE
MR NBLHCREE-_ETAE

E-_BENFTA=1t—HLHF
EHERETE2BURER L EHR
8 I O &N

S EE L B

REBERARRFERNEERFE
AN (BIBLZ AR 5 M = W 3EHE 7
EB2Ue %) REMA 2 B
B BNREBERRITERREES
A mEEINERR - BRERE
BEZEBREET BHE  ARBK
BE AEERARTREBETER
RIEEXRETINEG - AR H
NFEIBR - KRR E E 2 5
HOF R R EE R Rl B XK o

FrE < & % E

TRFAJAEERARA R 2R
RFFEH 2 E¥RAR  ERERRZE
REMARNINEEE U2
REUEREERABMEL -
RAEZ2Y  BAREBABTRE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
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(b)

BEREREEBEREE @

SMEE = Bt ()

PR 2 8 ¥Rk (8)

The Group and the Company KEERKKRQT
2009 2008

—EZAE —ETNE
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =L BE BE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FTHET FATT FAT

United States Dollars Ex(=Erxl)

(“Usb”) 235,485 29,695 193,265 25,949
Japanese Yen (“JPY?) B ([Bxl) 126 214 296 -
RMB AR 28,716 6,771 20,652 11,553
KRW B E 1,453 - 1,281 -

265,780 36,680 215,494 37,502
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The following table indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year (and retained
profits) that would arise if the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group and the Company have significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

TRERAEERAEA TN 2R
KB ABEARB 2 IMEERRNE B
2B A EE 2 F AR (RRBE
) 2 BEE  ERRELRRE
BT -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €riT A wm

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(b) MBEEREREBFEREX @

SMEE = Bt ()

BRRED T ()

2009 2008
“ERNF ZEENE

Effect on Effect on

Increase profit or Increase profit or

(decrease) loss  (decrease) loss

in foreign before in foreign before

exchange taxation exchange taxation

rates  HERBA rates  HRALA

HMEEE  ENRIER  NEEZX  ENGEE

E# (FR) %8 LA(TR) LTE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER

usb e 1.0% 2,058 1.0% 1,673
(1.0)% (2,058) (1.0)% (1,673)

JPY B 11.0% (10) 11.0% g8
(11.0)% 10 (11.0)% (33)

RMB ARE 2.0% 439 2.0% 219
(2.0)% (439) (2.0)% (219)

KRW # 29.0% 421 29.0% 310
(29.0)% (421) (29.0)% (310)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the group entities’ profit or loss for the year and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong Dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
pUrposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to remeasure those
financial assets and liabilities held by the Group and the
Company which expose the Group and the Company to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s and the Company’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2008.

ERAZINZ D MEREARE R
BEERAEREEETE (RER
BH DREHRPRZEXRLERS
FBIL) Z AN R N S BT IR B 2

B & G -

HREDIT D RRIMNEER 2 &
ERAREHFEARBEMBALR
EHYIREAREE KA R R @RI
ERRzEBEENAE - WO
TEERIMER 2 B BEHREBRE
RAREBEARNAR 2 25 E-ME
HZER - ZBANTRE_FTN
FHERZEEET -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively; and

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and
dealer quotes for similar instruments;

° the fair value of derivative instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, use is made of
discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and
option pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate to their
corresponding carrying amounts.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. R T B )

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EBIEEMEREBERBE (@)

policies (Continued)
Fair values (Continued) RAAEE ()
Fair value measurements recognised in the ARG RAR R B A TP R
consolidated and the Company’s statements of ZAREBEE (B)

financial position (Continued)

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those s F—ERAEBEENIRER
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in REEXBELERMSZH
active market for identical assets or liabilities. B CREHAE) GTEFE ©

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those e F_ERAAEBEFENRER
derived from inputs other than quoted prices F1RBI T 1ERE LASN

included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the assets or liability that are based
on observable market data (unobservable

BEXBBEMEBABRZE
AER - B BUERER) X
A (BIZK BB s EFAT -

F_BRAABEAENERMG
BRI E R B AL FEERT
BREMSEEZEN GEBE
BAEM) TS

inputs).

2009

—ZEZENEF

Level 2

E_E

HK$’000

FATT

Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ & & & 7,391
Included in consolidated income statement is an STAGREIERR DA ENERER
amount of approximately HK$517,000 fair value gain BEZTESRBEZAREBEK

related to the derivative financial liabilities held at the 7= #47517,00078 JT °

end of the reporting period.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
with effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance. In contrast,
the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting)
required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geographical) using a risks and returns
approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format
was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has
not resulted a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14. Nor
has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of
measurement of segment profit or loss.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electronic components. The Group’s operations
are divided into two reportable segments: composite
components segment and unit electronic components
segment.

Segment turnover and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and
results by reportable segments:

7B E

AEER _TTNF—A-RERATE
M mELRNESHEENE - BEM
WEERESR T —BEEER - RE
AEFBTZLEBRRELRENHBERD
o K sHA R R IR EAE EHE AR E S E
MRCER D 2 AR EE BRI E N B2
Ei o RERER (FE G ERIF 1455
DEpERE) B ESKE §8 DA B & O Ak &
RIFAE D B (R RitE) - B AEE
ZHEZBERAREBH SR - BIRREE
SR ERIF14RETE 2 B BRI 2HM D AL
% EAEBMBHREERESRALES
HEHREARB ZAI2HMD B ° &KA
BEMBREERFESRTENEAESD
BRI EE -

AEEFRUSRENRHEE T LI - X
SEz2B RMERZ2HmOE  BAT
o MREMEFITHDEL
THERBERERE

AT RARE 2 EXBRFRERAIZHD
BRRT{E 2 DT -

Unit electronic
Composite components components Consolidated
ant BENETak ga
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ZERAE CTI\F CZREAF _TT\F ZBRAE _TI)\F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TEL TER TAT TR TR

170,253 173,554 592,280 797,912

Turnover BEH 422,027 624,358
Segment profit (loss) AEEA (B8 7,087 7,986
Net unallocated operating REAEEEWA

income et
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR (58)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned
by/loss from each segment without allocation of part of
the other income. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

(6,610)  (13.412) 47 (5,426)
2,831 3,888
3,308 (1,538)

Al 2D EZ ERTBREAKE 2 GFF I
R (M EE3ATR) B8R » D EREFEE
HEE DGR, FIREERMAD B
I EMBRAB D » AT BEERKE
BENREERDBE M KRBAFEZFTE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER @

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UWTAARER s EERG BRI 2R E0

liabilities by reportable segment: FrtEZ D #f -

Composite components Unit electronic components Consolidated
i -k S £

311212009 311212008 114/2008 317122000 31/12/2008 11/2008  $112/2009  31/12/2008 17200
= &/ S EENE CEEAE CRRNE ERNE CEEAF CTRE CEA)
t2A=1-8 toA=t-H —A-R tZB=t-B toA=t-A —A-A t2B=t-B toA=t-H -A-
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
Tén TR TR Tn TAL TR Tn T TAL

rr\h‘f@

Seqment assfs HuEE 203,184 191578 215861 51,108 5906 66,982 BAW 250683 280843
Unallocated assets FMIARAE 20417 179,533 195,055
Consolidated assets BAEE 494,799 430,416 478,098
Seqment s U8k 62,148 %715 16345 2859 14829 24100 8,007 50544 70445
Unallocated liabites MARAR 57,213 0,720 12817
Consolidated liabilities LAaf 140,220 2 83,262

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and B S 2 B MRIFN DL E IR B

allocating resources between segments: 7y :

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other e KRTAHERS  BHRITENR
than marketable securities, short-term bank deposits, RekRECEFEY  BHEE B
cash and cash equivalents, intangible assets, éﬁ&*ﬁfﬁfﬂ&fﬁ%ﬁﬁ R K B b jE Uk
goodwill and part of trade and other receivables, WIE - BRRREFIEREEYE
amounts due from shareholders and deposits for 7%%6%& Sz iﬁl\ T EEEED
purchase of property, plant and equipment. Assets EHMEHRESLE - HEHDEZ R
used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on t‘:’\%EZéq?HzFﬁ%ﬁ@E P R

the basis of the production capacity; and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments e RTTTAZMARE - BT &
other than derivative financial liabilities, current and LTR AEENEBE FIEAEHE

deferred tax liabilities. DELERE DR o
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER @
Other segment information Hithn HME R
Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss AR ERN S EIE D HEECFTELZ
or segment assets: BH
Composite Unit electronic
components components Unallocated Consolidated
ek ENETLh A4 B &5e
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE CTT)\F ZBEIAE -ST)/\F ZBEIAE T3\ ZEBEAE _TT)F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$S'000
Tigx TEr Tz Thr  TEx  TEr AR TEn
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE 4,981 9410 2,034 1657 28,634 1583 35649 12,650
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 13,683 15285 5,309 3,781 - 45 18992 19,061
Gain on disposal of property, HENE HER
plant and equipment HiE 2 Wam 830 172 - - - - 830 172
Impairment loss on trade B SR
and other recelvables B AEER 196 2,029 - 368 - - 196 5711
Reversal of impairment loss on BEELE SER
trade receivables LREBE 308 256 - 9% - - 308 351
Write down of inventories irs 3,053 378 1,34 1,020 - = 4,304 1,398

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets, other
receivables and deposits for purchase of property, plant and
equipment.

Geographical information

The Group’s operation is principally located in Hong Kong
and other parts of the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

MEE . FRBEETERERE  BREE H
fUREKFIR R BEYE - s R&iEZ

HEDEE R

REE 2 BT ZMUNEE RPEEAMM
E o

AEBRBINIEP 2 Wm M ABEIER
BEECERREEMBABFIIMOT

Turnover Non-current assets
=E £ RBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZREAEFE —TT)\F ZBBAFE —TT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET FHET THET

PRC (other than Hong Kong) B (BB

Hong Kong e
Korea B2
Others HAth

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets and
deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

354,537 496,610 41,954 46,804
91,945 145,336 5,666 5,445
103,561 136,618 28,454 24,768
42,237 19,448 - =

592,280 797,912 76,074 77,017

Mt : FFRBEETBERE BVAERE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEEFR @
Information about major customers ERFEEFZEH
The Group’s customer base includes two (2008: two) AEBZEFHBEEMRA (ZETN\F -
customers with whom transactions have exceed 10% of MB) B (BERSHLASE L XBERA
the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 31 December 10%) - BE_ZETNF+-_A=1+—H
2009, revenues from these customers amounted to IFE  REZERFAEEESTHRE
approximately HK$113 million and HK$69 million from BTz Wam s B4 A113,000,000
composite components and unit electronic components, 77T 69,000,000 L (ZEZ )\ F -
(2008: HK$172 million and HK$150 million). 172,000,000 7&. }%.150,000,0005% 7T) °
8. TURNOVER 8. EHEHE
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to % Fj‘iﬂ ETREPZEMNEER
customers less goods returned and trade discounts. B MBRREREER -
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hiz A
2009 2008
—EENFE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FET
Interest income from bank deposits R 2 F B A 1,823 3,368
Interest income from proceeds B ERAFSHTS A
receivable from disposal of Z FBHA
equity securities 65 51
Rental income e WA 249 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME WS REE
plant and equipment 2 Was 830 172
Scrap sales RERLSH & 214 108
Unrealised gain on marketable securities ] H & & % 2 A & IR Uk 25 - 79
Realised gain on marketable securities 7] K& & %5 2 B # IR Uz 14 -
Reversal of impairment loss on trade K’E\H&%’f%&ﬁfﬂﬁﬁn
and other receivables 2R (B B 18 B 308 351
Value added tax refund (note) HEHE (M) 1,022 109
Increase in fair value of derivative TTEemBaE
financial liabilities Z R BEEM 517 -
Increase in fair value of investment LEYEZ AR EEEN
property 400 =
Others HAth 307 110
5,749 4,348
Note: A tax concession has been granted by the PRC tax authority MisE : HEBRBERESARE —HREET
to one of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries which is engaged EmEOHEE 2 REKBARKREFIE
in the export sales of electronic products. Under this B - RIBMER - RRHEB AR R
concession, the PRC subsidiary is entitled to a refund of value B BRI E3% % H 2 IBEFRE ©
added tax paid in excess of an effective rate of 3%. The amount BEFENSEDIRETEERRAE
of value added tax refund is recognised as other income on Uz A o

an accrual basis.
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Notes:

10. TAXATION 10. B 18
2009 2008
—EEhEF —TEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERRAEH
Provision for the year NFE R 1,042 -
Under-provision in prior years DEFEEREDTR 35,996 -
37,038 =
PRC Corporate Income Tax PEEEREH
Provision for the year RNEFEREE 2,095 1,054
Tax refund on reinvestment of profit RE—EHBARZ5EF
derived from a subsidiary (note d) BIRERTEE (MiEd) - (3,280)
(Over) under-provision in prior years ~ EFERE GBZ) TR (185) 3,310
1,910 1,084
38,948 1,084
Deferred tax (note 32) IEFERLIE (fI5E32)
Charged (credited) for the year RFEEXHEER) 644 (242)
Attributable to change in tax rate MEEE 8 — (82)
644 (324)
39,592 760

i

(@)

For year ended 31 December 2009, Hong Kong Profits Tax
had been provided for in the financial statements at 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits. For year ended 31 December
2008, Hong Kong Profits Tax had not been provided for in the
financial statements as the Group did not derive any
assessable profits for that year.

In addition, Hong Kong Profits Tax had been provided for in
the financial statements for the years of assessment 2001/02
to 2008/09 at 16% to 17.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for those years.

Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax for Shenzhen
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”)
and Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is
calculated at 20% and 25% (2008: 18% and 25%) of estimated
assessable profits for the year, respectively.

The Korea Branch and a subsidiary operated in Korea are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 12.1% (2008:
12.1%). No income tax provision has been made for two years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 as the tax losses brought
forward from prior years exceed the estimated assessable
profits for both years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

10. TAXATION (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

The Group carries out manufacturing activities in the PRC
through its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kwang Sung and under the
terms of a processing agreement with a third party factory,
and has substantial involvement in these manufacturing
activities undertaken in the PRC. The profits earned are thus
considered to be partly arising and derived from the
manufacturing activities carried out in the PRC and partly from
other activities performed in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the
Group claimed a 50:50 offshore concession in respect of Hong
Kong Profits Tax which had been agreed with the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in the year of
assessment 1999/2000.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the Group the basis of its 50:50
offshore concession claims for the years of assessment 2001/
02 to 2006/07 in relation to the Group’s manufacturing
activities carried out in the PRC, and issued an additional
assessment of approximately HK$3,318,000 for the year of
assessment 2001/02 on the basis that the Group was not
eligible to the 50:50 offshore claims for profits derived from
manufacturing activities carried out by Shenzhen Kwang Sung.
The Company lodged an objection against the additional
assessment and purchased a tax reserve certificate of
approximately HK$3,318,000 as demanded by the HKIRD in
2008.

In March 2009, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2002/03
amounted to approximately HK$6,424,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an
objection against the additional assessment and purchased a
tax reserve certificate of approximately HK$6,424,000 as
demanded by the HKIRD in 2009.

The Group’s operation has remained unchanged since 1999/
2000, in view of the stringent approach adopted by the HKIRD
in treating 50:50 manufacturing offshore profits claim, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group should make
provision for the previously 50:50 offshore claims in the current
year. Thus, an additional provision of approximately
HK$35,996,000 has been provided for in the consolidated
income statement, however, a sum of tax expense of
approximately HK$9,946,000 should be borne by two
shareholders, details are set out in note 39(a)(ii).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, adequate
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in these
financial statements.
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126 Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

10. TAXATION (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

In 2007, the Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau enquired the related
party transactions and transfer price policy of Shenzhen Kwang
Sung for the five years from 1 January 2002 to 31 December
2006. Shenzhen Kwang Sung had submitted the requested
information to the Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau and estimated
that an additional income tax payable of HK$1,408,000 in
respect of the enquiries was required. Full provision for the
estimated additional income tax payable of HK$ 1,408,000 was
made in the 2007 financial statements.

In 2008, the scope of enquiries regarding the transfer price
policy of Shenzhen Kwang Sung from Shenzhen Local Tax
Bureau has been changed to cover the five years from 1
January 2003 to 31 December 2007. Directors of the Company
reassessed the matter and estimated that the Group would
have to pay in total of HK$4,445,000. Accordingly, an
additional provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax of
HK$3,037,000 was made in the financial statements during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

The directors of the Company consider that adequate provision
for the above enquires has been made in these financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company
reinvested part of the profit derived from its subsidiary,
Shenzhen Kwang Sung, which is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established in the PRC, as paid-up capital of the
subsidiary. During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Company received a tax refund of HK$3,280,000 in connection
to the income tax previously paid by Shenzhen Kwang Sung
on the reinvested amount.

Pursuant to Shen Guo Shui Fa 2008 notice 145, Shenzhen
Kwang Sung is subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax at a
rate of 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010 and 24% in 2011. From 1
January 2012 onwards, the applicable tax rate will be 25%.

Pursuant to the Corporate Tax Act of Republic of Korea, Korean
corporate income tax rate was changed from 12.1% to 11%
for assessable income up to KRW200 million and from 25%
to 24% for assessable income over KRW200 million for the
year of 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. BiIH @)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit ARG 1B 2 7 A AN 4F 5 H0 T8 B2 R B A s A
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated income (B518) 2 HERMAT -

statement as follows:

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Profit (loss) before taxation PR AR R (B18) 3,308 (1,538)
Notional tax on profit (loss) before EREMRBT KR AR

taxation, calculated at the rates BEHENEOERBEFTHE

applicable to profits in the tax Br % A ) (B518)

jurisdictions concerned OR8] 2,667 (165)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Ft I8 F &k i 5 1 Al H1 Bk

for tax purpose A ETE 1,481 1,285
Tax effect of non-taxable income AHIEREME

for tax purpose BERBRANTR G2 (1,191) (289)
Tax effect of concession on patents ~ FEF MK L

(note) (M%) (1,876) -
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised ) F % BT R ER M B IEE 18

previously B (84)
Deferred tax asset in respect of tax BRHARERBIIEESE

losses and other temporary K H fth R B = 5

differences not recognised BRI A BE 2,700 7
Under-provision in prior years NEFEZ#ETR 35,811 3,310
Tax refund on reinvestment of RE B AR %A

profit derived from a subsidiary BIEERHE - (3,280)
Decrease in opening deferred tax B R 3 A B R TR

liability resulting from a decrease BYCRLERIBABRD

in applicable tax rate = (82)
Others HAb - 108
Taxation for the year REEHIR 39,592 760

Note: According to Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance S.16(1)g,
the sum expensed for the registration of patents used in the
trade, profession or business which produces profits are
allowed to be deducted from the Hong Kong Profits Tax.

i

RIBE BB EBIE16(1)glk - EEE
2 BEXEBREALEN 2 BRER
SEHH) 2R A e BB IS B A, -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. REFEEEIE

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Loss for the year is arrived at after REEBELHER GrA) ¢
charging (crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration 1% AN BN &
— audit services - ZER 450 750
— tax services - MBRE - 50
— other services - HAh AR - 1,368
Minimum lease payments under KEHET

operating leases 2 =IERAENK
— hire of properties - AR 4,527 4,780
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRAN (BRESHS -

remuneration disclosed in note 12) R 51285 88)

— salaries, wages, allowance and -5& - IE& 2B

other benefits in kind &EM,\%E*U 74,708 106,710
— retirement scheme contributions - RIRETEI 2 3R 1,787 2,754
— termination benefits — B AR A - 469

76,495 109,933
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARX ZFEKAR

an expense 517,780 707,511
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEE 855 -
Amortisation of club memberships @ AT £

(included in other operating expenses) (5t A ELfb & & B 2) - 45
Impairment loss on trade and EWE 5 K&

other receivables H R EEE

(included in other operating expenses) (it A LA & & FI52) 196 5,711
Net foreign exchange losses bE W BI85 ’E 2,746 2,338
Write down of inventories FEMR Gt AHEERA)

(included in cost of sales) 4,394 1,398
Depreciation e 18,177 19,016
Less: amount recorded under B BT REE T 815

government grant x| (40) -
Amount charged to the consolidated R4RAIBHIRP L2 &5

income statement 18,137 19,016

Net rental income FHEE WA (249) -

Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$57,130,000
(2008: HK$75,938,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and minimum lease payments in respect of rented
premises, of which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Minimum lease payments include an amount of
approximately HK$704,000 (2008: HK$701,000) for staff
quarters which is also included and disclosed in staff costs.

FERABIEREE THRA - FrEM LA
EYEKEEERREREA57,130,00075
T (ZZEZE/)\F : 75,938,000/ 7T) ° i&LL
??ﬁ;ﬁga{%uﬁ)\t% DHEE SEES
E o

EEHENFREREEEIREE 2
704,000 7T (ZFZ /\4 : 701,000/

7;5) RS BENBENNEEE TRA
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12. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161

KkEEBFEBERAT 129
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12.EEM <€
BIEFBCATHEOD E161IEIEH K E 2

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EEZMewT

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind contributions 2009 Total
fees H& 2 Bk ZZERE
EZHE KENEA HEE &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TET
Executive directors HITEE
Yang Jai Sung 252 - 2,150 12 2,162
Woo Nam Jin (note a) BEY (Mita) - 958 12 970
Lee Kyu Young FER - 608 12 620
Non-executive director FHUTESE
Yang Ho Sung RiEE 230 - - 230
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Kim Chung Kweon PIFE 75 - - 75
Han Byung Joon ENE 80 - - 80
Kim Chan Su &K 90 - - 20
475 3,716 36 4,207
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and bengfits scheme
Directors’ inkind  contributions 2008 Total
fees  Fd - 2E Bk ZEENE
EEZHE REWET FTEIR A3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL FATL
Executive directors HITEE
Yang Jai Sung REE - 2,059 12 2,071
Kim Sun Cheol (note b) 2 &% (ftio) - - - -
Woo Nam Jin BEY 216 656 12 884
Lee Kyu Young FER 728 - - 728
Non-executive director FHTESE
Yang Ho Sung 2R 455 14 - 469
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Kim Chung Kweon PiFE 80 - - 80
Han Byung Joon BRAE 80 - - 80
Kim Chan Su SEK 92 - - 92
1,651 2,729 24 4,404
Notes: MosE -
(a)  Resigned on 29 January 2010. (@ R-E_TFE—-_B_tNLHBEE-
(b)  Resigned on 1 April 2008. b) RZZFZNFWMA—HEIE -
No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended HE_ZTNFRZZTNF+=-A=1+

31 December 2009 and 2008. No emoluments were paid
to the directors as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

—BIEFE  BESENETAMNE - &
EETHER_TENF+_A=1+—
ALEFE  $ERNESZME - ABE
iﬁ%kﬁ%%k$%§%ﬁ¢%%%2
HE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE
13. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 13. 58 REH AL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two FEHRERHFATH  EFRE (ZEEN
(2008: three) were directors of the Company whose F:=ZR)ABRARAEE  EMEER L
emoluments are disclosed in note 12. The emoluments of MM 1I2MEE R c Bt =% (ZTZN
the remaining three (2008: two) individuals, which are F: WB) &= AT ZB£7E1,000,000
individually below HK$1,000,000, were as follows: BITAT - HAWT :
2009 2008
—ZEEhEF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits e hEME
in kind 2,747 1,760
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET B R 36 24
2,783 1,784
14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E
(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company @ AFEENTARBEEAZRK
attributable to the year: B
2009 2008
=F 1 77 L L iV
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHE T
Interim dividend declared EEIREZNFERE
and paid of nil RERLTBERT
(2008: 0.5 HK cents) (ZZEZNF : 0.5%81L)

per ordinary share - 1,577




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

14. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved

and paid during the year:

HREEFERERQA
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14. g B @)

(b)

F A E XK T BRE £ — @&
HEERNTARAREBAZR
=1

1SN

2009 2008
—EBENF ZTEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Final dividend in respect of FAHE KRR 2
the previous financial year, HE—EARBFE
approved and paid NERE R
during the year, of nil BREERT
(2008: 1.4 HK cents) (ZZEZNF - 1.480)
per ordinary share - 4,415
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRE B
(@) Basic loss per share (a) BREALXEHE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$35,774,000 (2008:
HK$2,298,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 321,325,000 (2008:
315,145,000) in issue during the year.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

ERENGBRIZARREES AR
15518 4935,774,000% T (Z BT\
F : 2,208,000/ 7T) R FERNE T
TmAR 2 hnEe 19 20321,325,0008%
—ZTT\F : 315,145,0008%) &t

St
B o
ZAi

BERZ T &

Number of shares

v 4=
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
’000 ’000
TR T A%
Issued ordinary shares Rn—HA—Bz

at 1 January BT T AR 315,362 313,580
Effect of share options exercised = 1T{EERE 2 £ - 1,565
Effect of new shares issued BITHR 2 & 5,963 =

Weighted average number AR INRE T8
of ordinary shares 321,325 315,145
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 7% 3 % Y =E
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BHEZZNF+_A=+—HILFE
15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BREE @
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) SREHEIE
The computation of diluted loss per share does not EEREEEERIUERIAR
assume the concession of the Company’s AIRITEERENRE BA1THE
outstanding share options since their exercise would ZEBRESRBRERERRD -

result in decrease in loss per share.

Number of shares

%08 B
2009 2008
—EENF ZTENF
’000 ’000
T F A&
Weighted average number RIEtEBREREE 2
of ordinary shares used LB AR N 19 8
in calculating basic loss
per share 321,325 315,145
Deemed issue of ordinary shares 1R {ERIEAR QR 2
under the Company’s share FERRRE AT EI A
option scheme for nil TREBTEER
consideration 329 4,059
Weighted average number REsTESREEEIRE .
of ordinary shares used AR I tE 98

in calculating diluted loss
per share 321,654 319,204
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 -~ R R&E

The Group rEE
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and

for own use Plant and equipment
#EB A2 machinery Eft#% - Total
THREF BBERRE BERRE Bt
HK$000  HK$000 HKE000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET

COST OR VALUATION A (B
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 39,252 126,780 34,265 200,297
Exchange adjustments fE A (5,738) (5,932) (1,968) (13,638)
Additions A - 8,497 2,570 11,067
Disposals HE - (914) (1,148) (2,062)
Deficit on revaluation Bt Al (3,879) - - (3,879)
Less: Elimination of accumulated B MR E

depreciation (900) - - (900)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF

+=—A=+—H 28,735 128,431 33,719 190,885
REPRESENTING &
Cost XA - 128,431 33,719 162,150
Valuation — 2008 HE-—ZEENF 28,735 - - 28,735
28,735 128,431 38,719 190,885
DEPRECIATION Tﬁ%
At 1 January 2008 A—ZEENF—A—H - 77,036 26,411 103,447
Exchange adjustments b 5 FH B - (2,855) (1,520) (4,375)
Provided for the year FERE 900 13,680 4,436 19,016
Eliminated on disposals 1 S - (886) (1,145) (2,031)
Elimination on revaluation RS 6 (900) - - (900)
At 31 December 2008 —EENF
+_H_+ A - 86,975 28,182 115,157

CARRYING VALUES BEEE
At 31 December 2008 —EENF

+_H_+ H 28,735 41,456 5,637 75,728
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 ~ #HBEREE @

(Continued)
The Group (Continued) AREE (&)
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
#{EE A2 machinery Hf Total
THREF BBERRE BERRE Bet
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$000
FHT THL THET FET
COST OR VALUATION A (h{E
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEENF—A—H 28,735 128,431 33,719 190,885
Exchange adjustments B %5 % 1,295 1,640 556 3,491
Additions 1A - 2,659 4,356 7,015
Acquired on acquisition Y g —FE BT B A A
of a subsidiary (note 36) 4B (P9 5E36) - 294 - 294
Disposals HE - (5,584) (682) (6,266)
Surplus on revaluation BfHAK 9,167 = = 9,167
Reclassified to investment property EF D EEHREME
(note 17) (M=E17) (3,700) — - (3,700)
Less: Elimination of revaluation B E R (854) - - (854)
At 31 December 2009 RZTTNEF
+-A=+—H 34,643 127,440 37,949 200,032
REPRESENTING RE
Cost XA - 127,440 37,949 165,389
Valuation - 2009 HE-—TTNEF 34,643 - - 34,643
34,643 127,440 37,949 200,032
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—H—H - 86,975 28,182 115,157
Exchange adjustments B X A% - 1,033 453 1,486
Provided for the year FERE 854 13,484 3,839 18,177
Eliminated on disposals £ E - (5,101) (134) (5,235)
Elimination on revaluation Al b (854) = - (854)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF
+=ZA=+—8H - 96,391 32,340 128,731
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF

+tZA=+—H 34,643 31,049 5,609 71,301
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 ~ #HBEREE @

(Continued)
The Company b/ /N
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
#EB A2 machinery Ef#% - Total
THREF BBERRE BERRE Bet
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
COST OR VALUATION A (h{E
At 1 January 2008 RZEZENF—-H—H 25,342 27,251 13,211 65,804
Exchange adjustments fE A2 (5,739) (5,932) (1,968)  (13,639)
Additions 1A = 1,523 1,595 3,118
Disposals HE - - (1,148) (1,148)
Surplus on revaluation B AH% 130 - - 130
Less: Elimination of accumulated W MR E
depreciation (548) - - (548)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF
+=ZA=+—8H 19,185 22,842 11,690 53,717
REPRESENTING K&
Cost XA - 22,842 11,690 34,532
Valuation - 2008 fE-—ZTN\F 19,185 - - 19,185
19,185 22,842 11,690 53,717
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZEZEN\F—H—H = 12,966 10,210 23,176
Exchange adjustments b 5 FE B - (2,855) (1,520) (4,375)
Provided for the year FEER 548 3,660 2,219 6,427
Eliminated on disposals 6 B 8 - - (1,145) (1,145)
Elimination on revaluation RS 6 (548) - - (548)
At 31 December 2008 RZTENF
+=-A=1+—8 - 13,771 9,764 23,535
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF
+-A=+—H 19,185 9,071 1,926 30,182
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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16. 1% ~ B RBE@®

(Continued)
The Company (Continued) I N/NCRE )
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
#¥EB A2 machinery Hfti¥% - Total
THREF BERRE BERRE Bt
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAET TAT TAT TAT
COST OR VALUATION A b B
At 1 January 2009 RZEZTNF—F—H 19,185 22,842 11,690 53,717
Exchange adjustments 0 3 F R 1,295 1,812 520 3,627
Additions N - 308 2,658 2,966
Disposals HE - (5,584) (11) (5,595)
Surplus on revaluation E{h A% 4,249 - - 4,249
Reclassified to investment property EHHBEREWE
(note 17) (H5E17) (3,700) - - (3,700)
Less: Elimination of accumulated o MSERAITE
depreciation (586) - - (586)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENF
+=ZA=+—"H 20,443 19,378 14,857 54,678
REPRESENTING A
Cost BEN - 19,378 14,857 34,235
Valuation — 2009 fHE-—ZENF 20,443 - - 20,443
20,443 19,378 14,857 54,678
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—F—H - 13,771 9,764 23,535
Exchange adjustments fE R - 782 438 1,220
Provided for the year FEEE 586 3,111 1,289 4,986
Eliminated on disposals £ i 8 - (5,101) (7) (5,108)
Elimination on revaluation RS 6 (586) - - (586)
At 31 December 2009 RZTZENEF
+=-A=+—"H - 12,563 11,484 24,047
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2009 R_EZNF
+=—A=+—H 20,443 6,815 3,373 30,631
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis over the following useful

lives:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Leasehold land and buildings situated thereon are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years after the date of purchase.

Notes:

(a)

HREEFERERQA
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16. 1% ~ B RBE@®

Btz - #es MEREBTIINMER FHINE
BARORITE

TRAARERE LHETINE -

HE Lt RABF IR m 4+ 5
REMGHERFHzEEE (BEE
2 BREET N EBRO0F) EITIE -

Plant and machinery 4 - 10 years o HBEKEE 4-10%F
Other property, plant
and equipment 3 -5 years o HWE - HBRFXME 3-5%F
Bt 5 -
The analysis of net carrying value of land and buildings held (@ FHEEEBANAAEAERZ THREF
for own use carried at fair value is as follows: ZEEFEITAOT ¢
The Group The Company
rEH AAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERE T N\F ZBEAE —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT FHET FHEIT
Freehold outside Hong Kong ~ E&BEING KA EEREE 20,443 15,885 20,443 15,885
Medium-term leases EBBFEIMNERHBELNFE
outside Hong Kong 14,200 9,550 - -
Medium-term leases EBEBRTPHBNFE
in Hong Kong - 3,300 = 3,300
34,643 28,735 20,443 19,185
The Group’s and the Company’s land and buildings held for b) RZZETAF+—ZRA=+—R0 " ExA&E

own use were revalued as at 31 December 2009 at their open
market value. The valuations were carried out by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent firm of
professional surveyors not connected with the Group who had
among staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions. A revaluation surplus of approximately
HK$9,167,000 (2008: deficit of HK$3,879,000) has been
transferred to the properties revaluation reserve, net of deferred
tax of approximately HK$1,512,000 (2008: HK$635,000) (note
32).

ERAARFEEERAZ L RIEFZA
FTEETEMN X FHEREANEEN
B 2 T8 B (L AR EAS TS E RS
BEEARARET  HAMETAEHAE
EMBEKE - [HETHRERR H 2 Kk
MZBEUDEZ BRI BMELT o 4
9,167,000 TEHAH (ZZTNF :
3,879,000 JT /&5 4t) I 0 KR I B B 49
1,512,000 (ZZZ /A4 : 635,000/ 7T)
EWEEEYESEHE (RWEs2) o
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Had the above land and buildings held for own use been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying

amounts would have been:

St 765 R 3R B
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16. 1% ~ B RBE@®

B&EE - (%)

(b) (#&)

fiid L35 1E B A 2 Lt RABF B IR AR

RETEIE  RESE/R

The Group The Company
rEE AT

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBEhE ZTTN\F —BEAF ZZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT FEx FAT
Freehold land and buildings R AFRERE 2 L RIBF 9,610 8,116 9,610 8,116
Leasehold land and buildings M &E#HHE 2 L RIEF 4,956 9,709 - 2,998
14,566 17,825 9,610 11,114

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. REY

The Group and the Company

AEBRAADF
2009 2008
—EETAE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Fair value AREE
At 1 January R—H—H - -
Transfer from property, plant EEEME
and equipment (note 16) W28 N 545 (15E16) 3,700 —
Increase in fair value recognised RiBRERZ
in profit or loss NAEEEM 400 -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 4,100 =

The Group’s and the Company’s investment property was
revalued as at 31 December 2009 at its open market value.
The valuations were carried out by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
surveyors not connected with the Group who had among
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
same locations and conditions.

RZZBZNF+ZA=+—H  Gstr%
BRARBZRENMEZ AFRHEETE
f o s EfhEMEANKEY EERE 2 BT
BXAEMBIEEEETEERBER QA
#T HBOHEIRBTEAEMBEK
8 o fRETI2EERME MR 2 B
KGR REMAETT
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

All of the Group’s and the Company’s property interests
held under operating lease to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and with
the medium-term lease.

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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17. REWZE @

REBRARRBZ IEREEROBEL
FRERBBES BN E 2 WEER - T
BRARBEERGE  BoBARIEE
MEANRR -

NRBEZREMERZTHENREE -

18. R B~ B 2 =

The Company
AT

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
—2FNF —TT/\F  1/1/2008
+=A +=—HA ZEZTNF
=t-A =+—8 —A—H
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
FERT FHET FHET

Unlisted equities, at cost FEETRA - K ANE
At 1 January Kn—H—H
Additional contribution BINEE
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H

Amounts due to subsidiaries FE AR BB A &) k8 (&%)
(note)

Analysed for reporting AITE2HARE
purposes as:

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mBaE

Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand (2008: not expected to be settled within one year).

82,957 82,382 56,719
11,564 575 25,663

94,521 82,957 82,382

(43,198)  (37,446)  (28,160)

51,323 45,511 54,200
94,521 45,511 54,202
(43,198) - -
51,323 45,511 54,202

MiEE - ENMBARSRARERR 28 1F
BREREE (CETN\EF : BRAER—
FAREER) -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. R B A B 2 FE&= )

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZBZNFERZFZENF+_A=1+—
2009 and 2008 are as follows: H  AARIZMBRARZHBNOT -
Paid-up and
issued capital/ Proportion of  Proportion of
registered ownership ownership
Place of ordinary share interest held by interest held by
establishment Class of HER the Company  the Company
Name of Company and operation sharesheld BE7E%X/ HBAQAKEZ ®HALTHEEZ  Principal activities
ARER RURSEER FEROEN CEMERR  FERRmLA FEERELH  FEXE
2009 2008
Z2ENE ZEENF
Shenzhen Kwang Sung ~ PRC Ordinary US$10,561,780 100% 100% Manufacture and sales of
(note a) i Tak 10,561,780% ¢ electronic components
AIKE (W) HERBER Tl
Kwang Sung Electronics  PRC Ordinary RMB500,000 100% 100% Provision of sales agency
Trading (Shenzhen) i Tk 500,000\ K 1 services to the Company
Co., Ltd. (note b) mMARAREHERERE
tEETE S (RI)
ERAR (M)
Grand Sonic Limited British Virgin -~ Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Inactive
Islands LER (e EREX
ABRAES
Brocoli Co., Limited Korea Ordinary  KRW1,966,450,000 69.7% - Research and development
(‘Brocoll’) ZH TAR  1,966,450,00088 and production of
WireTape™ cabling
technology products
3 | £ 2 WireTape™
BREMED
Notes: B 5E
(a) Itis a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. (a) ZAFARPBRKZZIIEBERE -
(b) Itis a wholly foreign owned investment commercial enterprise. (b) ZATRIEEEEEDE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RBER B A RRMIEFE RAEITE

end of both years. AEBES o
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19. GOODWILL 19. &
The Group
rEE

2009 2008
—ZEEhEF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Cost and carrying value B A K BR B
At 1 January n—H—H - —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ FEUiE — B A &M E 4 5,857 =
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 5,857 -

During the year ended 31 December 2009, management
of the Group determines that there is no impairment of its
cash generating unit (“CGU”), including one subsidiary
containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised as below:

The recoverable amount of this subsidiary has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and at a discount rate of 9.44%. The subsidiary’s
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using
30% average growth rate. This average growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth for casts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Since CGU benefits from the protection
of 17-year patents on its primary product granted in 2009,
management of the Group believes that 30% average
growth rate is reasonable. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of the subsidiary to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the subsidiary.

BE_ZZNE+-_A=1T—HILFE -
AEEEEEET  ERSEEEM (R
TELBM]) BEEHEz —HERBA
Al WHEEITRE °

ReEf Bz iReBEMEEEREH
BRRMKIE 2 EER RN T

ERl= NGO El - EEE-9 S PN =y
HExE - EREENFTEENETEEIE
MNP HBEERAFAHR S RENTAIM
9.44%MFIRE - BERFHZMEBAF
B METINM30%2 FIHIE K R HEMH
SR R RV ENARRETRAIE R R H
MEHBRBTEN FORPEREMAE
g - ARNBEEELABNRAR _TTNF
REEEEMER T LEHEMNEMNT
B BMAKEEEEME - 30% 2 FiE
RXEBAE - AMEREBEAENEER
REMBMARSRAMHERH - EhEE
BEMHEMENEX - GG IERE
EESMSEROEAS - EEERR &
ERRPEMSENA ENE B IEE
BB AR Z EREERENMBARZ
B EEE -
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20. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS
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20 BT E

The Group and the Company

KEBRAKADF
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Club memberships, at cost SR BN
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BXk
tZA=+— 889 889
Accumulated amortisation EgcEis
At 1 January Rn—H—H 216 171
Charge for the year FEWEER - 45
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 216 216
Carrying values AREE
At 31 December R+Z—HAH=+—H 673 673
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Patents
gl
The Group The Company
X5E b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ZEAE ZTT)N\F ZZBEAF ZTT)\&
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THT TET FHT
Cost AE
At 1 January n—HA—A - - - -
Exchange adjustments B 5 & (63) - (36) =
Additions NE 11,407 - 11,407 -
Acquired on acquisition Wi — KT B A R B
of a subsidiary Pl e 8,043 - - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 19,387 - 11,371 -
Amortisation i
At 1 January ®—H—H - - - -
Charge for the year REFEE 855 - 502 -
At 31 December Rt+=A=+—H 855 - 502 -
Carrying values REE
At 31 December R+-B=1+—8H 18,532 - 10,869 -

The patents entitle the Group to manufacture products
using WireTape™ cabling technology over 17 years from
the date of acquisition. The carrying values will therefore
be amortised over the remaining useful lives of 17 years.

ZEEFERREAEENINE B HR17E
FAWireTape™ B AR FF T REE M © BRE
EEMBEFRGAIERAFHI7F TS
3 °
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22.

23.

HREEFERERQA
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INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES  22. RAEHKRE
The Group and the Company
AEEREALQT

2009 2008

—EBENF —ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELMRARBS - HAAE

At 1 January Kn—H—H 1,500 1,500
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERIREEE (1,500) (1,500)

At 31 December

In view of significant operating losses incurred by the
investee, full impairment provision had been made for the
cost of investment in that entity of HK$1,500,000 in
previous years.

On 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company
disposed of an investment in equity securities with carrying
value of approximately HK$1,684,000 to another
shareholder of that entity at KRW200 million. Pursuant to
the sales and purchase agreement dated 31 December
2007, the consideration should be settled on or before 30
June 2008. On 28 September 2009, the Group and the
Company agreed to extend the repayment of sales
proceeds by installments of KRW100 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$666,000) each, payable on 30 June
2010 and 31 December 2010 respectively. The outstanding
sales proceeds receivable bears an interest at 6% per
annum.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES
The Group and the Company

Marketable securities were investments in a money market
fund comprising a portfolio of financial assets denominated
in RMB and managed by Fortis Investment Management
Belgium S.A. which were stated at their open market values
at 31 December 2008. For year ended 31 December 2009,
all of them were disposed of.

Rt+t—A=+—H

23.

HREXREEELEALLER 88
RBEFERRERNZERB AN
1,500,000/ 7T F i 2 BUR BB -

R-EBEELF+-_A=+—"H XAEERK
K2 &) BA200,000,00082 B RIZ B2 5 —
ZRR B EBREE 491,684,000 7T 2 A%
KEBEHKE - RIBEAPA T L+F+—
A=+—HBZzEEWH=  REEN_ZZT
NERNAZTHSEZANEE - R=EZh
FALRAZT+N\B  AEERARARREL
RIEEMSREBEZERD - UEH
100,000,000% & (18 & 7 #9666,000/%5
T0)  ARRR_E—ZEFNA=FTHEK
—E-TE+-A=+—HEE - HKB
B2 EWHEEMESHRIBIZFT AN ERGEST

B o

/N

i B
FEBRFAT

AHEERDIREBTSESZRE -
BREUAARBIEzeMEEHLS - I
F Fortis Investment Management Belgium
SAER U_TEEN\F+_HA=+—H
ZARTEIE BE_TZENF A
=+—HIEFE  2HEHFEHLEE -

143




144  Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

24. INVENTORIES
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24. 78

The Group and the Company
AEBRADF
31/12/2009 31/12/2008

—EZ2AE —FETNF  1/1/2008

+=A T=A ZBENF

=t-A =+—8B —A—H

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FHET FET FET

Raw materials R 22,884 41,248 30,790
Work in progress ER 5 17,552 15,123 20,939
Finished goods B m 16,664 24,871 18,938
57,100 81,242 70,667

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. ERNE Z R HEMBERR

The Group The Company
A58 O
31/12/2009  31/12/2008 31/12/2009  31/12/2008
ZEENE CEE)E 112008 ZBEAE —EE)NF 1/1/2008
A TR ZEENE TZh TR ZEENE
= =t-A -B-A = =+-A —-A-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T T TEn T T
Trade and bills receivables EUWE S RERER 131,125 104,014 118,638 131,008 104,014 119,270
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (10,582) (10,694) (5,334) (10,582) (10,694) (5,334)
120,543 98,320 113,304 120,426 93,320 113,936
Short-term loans to key management AT EEBAER
personnel and employees EEREEHER 667 280 1629 667 280 1629
Proceeds receivable from disposal HERRESH 2
of equity securities (note 22) EGTE (HiF22) 1,333 1232 1,684 1,333 1232 1,684
Tax reserve certficate (note 10(0) EBA (0p) 9,742 3,318 - 9,742 3,318 -
Deposits, prepayments and 7 BEFER
other receivables Eth RNER 10,728 9,516 7,156 10,636 9,513 6,524
143,013 107,666 123,773 142,804 107,663 123,773
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HAREENANE
Current assets RYBE 143,013 107,080 128,773 142,804 107,047 123,773
Non-current assets FRBEE - 616 - - 616 =
143,013 107,666 123,773 142,804 107,663 123,773
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. EIWE Z REMERR @)
(Continued)
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BRii D AT
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 - AEEGTEEIRPZFHAREE
90 days to its trade customers. Included in trade HR30E90K - EWE HRFBIE
receivables are trade and bills receivables (net of ZEHBE 22 EKE S RERE
allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on HOAEREEB)  RBREHRRZ
the due date with the following ageing analysis as of FREDITAT -

the end of the reporting period:

The Group The Company
558 |
31/12/2009  31/12/2008 31/12/2009  31/12/2008

ZEENE ZEE)E 112008 ZEEAE —EE)NF 1/1/2008
TZ8 tZF ZEE)\E TZA tZF ZEE)\F
=1-A =1+-H -A-H =1-f =ft-H -A-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Current il 87,641 62,151 81,051 87,524 62,151 81,683
Less than 1 month BHOR—(EA
1 10 3 months %N —{EHA 21,462 16,049 20,950 21,462 16,049 20,950
BAR=MEA 8,432 14,270 9,648 8,432 14,270 9,648
More than 3 months BHSR={A
but less than 12 months BORT A 3,008 830 1,655 3,008 830 1,655
More than 12 months BESNT AR - 20 - - 20 -

32,902 31,169 32,263 32,902 31,169 32,203

120,543 93,320 113,304 120,426 93,320 113,936

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor BEAEBFERZIIBEETS FR
impaired have the best credit scoring attributable Zt KBS EREZEKE SR
under the external credit scoring system used by the HEBREEESD -

Group.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group and the Company are satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including specific loss component,
is as follows:

St 765 R 3R B
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25. EWE 5 R EAMBRF @)

(b) BREZREERRZEE

BRARWE S RZBERRZBIER
BHERABEERLE  BAKRER
ARBRBREFRIE 2 & EMA
BRON - EURIBER NREBEERE
FEWE 5 B RIR AR T M -

FARERERED (BREEEE
B AT

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAQTF

2009 2008

—ZEThEF —ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At 1 January n—H—H 10,694 5,334
Impairment loss recognised EERREERE 196 5,711
Reversal of impairment loss BB B 18 =] 7 (308) (351)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 10,582 10,694

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s
and the Company’s trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$10,582,000 (2008:
HK$10,694,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances
(2008: except an amount of approximately
HK$1,611,000 (details are set out in note 6(b) under
credit risk).

HE_TTAF+-_A=+—H1t
FE AEERARBZERES
N EEERF#910,582,000/8 ¢ (— =
T\ 1 10,694,000 7T) & &5
BB 1% T E K IR R E o 18R H IR R
BzREKESEGREREE =
FER mMERBT(EHE  BHA
A EIEF —SHORIEREE - A%
B ERZEEBRFTEEAERR
(ZEZENF : B—%4%1,611,000
BT 2 FIEIN) (FBEERH E6(0)E
EREE) -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(C) The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
which are past due but not impaired:
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25. EWE 5 R EAMBRF @)

(C) EEMEEREZRKES KRR
B B AT

The Group and the Company
AEBRAEADF
31/12/2009 31/12/2008

—EZ2AE —FETNF  1/1/2008

+=A +=—A —BENE

=+—-8B =+—H —A—H

HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FHET FHE T

Less than 1 month w B DR — 1R A 21,462 16,049 20,950

1 to 3 months BHAZR—EABDR=EA 8,432 14,270 9,648
More than 3 months BHIZ N =1 A

but less than 12 months B4R+ — (@A 3,008 830 1,655

More than 12 months BmEAZ RN+ —{8A - 20 -

32,902 31,169 32,253

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$32,902,000 (2008:
HK$31,169,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances except for in 2008
collateral provided by a Korean customer as
mentioned in note 6(b). The average age of these
receivables is 102 days (2008: 114 days).

AAREBEEKE ZERARAEREEA
{E#932,902,000/8 7C (T T )\4F :
31,169,000/ 7T) ' RRER BB
Bz EERR - MASE L E
sHHRREEE -

EEHEERE BRERSEE
RIBRKEBRZZEZBIRFE
o RBATELER  ARNEEER
WEE XL - N EBBESRTIH
RAeET2EKE - HEEEBHEEH
AL SR ERERME - b —
FEEAEPN TS NFRMEZIE
H@mIN  REBWERZSEHRT
B AR R (i sE6bL)ATat) o 5%
ZRRERZ FHEREK A102K (=
ZZNF  114K) »
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26 HERREZEEY EH
IRITER
WITREES S SRRTER

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITAEBR IR T 5 F F1%0.001% £ 0.23%
from 0.001% to 0.23% (2008: 0.01% to 3.78%) per annum. (ZEBZ)N\F : 0.01%E3.78%) 518 - &

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances/short-term bank deposits

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the short-term
bank deposits with maturity over 3 months but within one
year carried fixed interest rate which range from 2.41% to

4.14% per annum.

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

E-ZENE+-_A=+—HIEFE =
B A EE—FAfEmZ BRI TFRIE
B EFERRK2.41%E4.14%5T 8 o

27. BN E S R HEMmIRK

The Group The Company
iS5 YN
31/12/2009  31/12/2008 31/12/2009  31/12/2008
“EENE CZEE)E 112008 ZBEEAE —EE)NF 1/1/2008
a: tZF ZEE)\E - tZF ZEE)\E
=1-A =t+-H -A-H =1-H =f-H -A-H
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL T T T T T
Trade creditors BARMAE 71,653 50,544 66,226 71,653 50,544 66,226
Accrued expenses and other payables ~ EzFEAR
A ERER 13,884 13,491 12,201 13,198 13,319 12,201
85,537 64,035 78,427 84,851 63,863 78,427

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors
presented based on the due date with the following ageing
analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

ENEZEEMERRERRIHAE 252
BHREMNE  ReEMR K& DTN

T~

The Group and the Company

AEERELQT
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
—EE2AE ZZTTNF  1/1/2008
+=A +=—HA ZEZTNF
=t—-B =+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET TAT
Due within 1 month — & A sk B R e E
or on demand 52,554 43,012 42,747
Due after 1 month but within — 1@ A& B =& A K E| &5
3 months 19,099 7,532 23,479
71,653 50,544 66,226

The average credit period on purchases of goods is O - 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the

credit timeframe.

BEZTFHEEHRRIEIOR - AEER

B RER

s

B

RIEEHPRALN

EHER - FERATE EARRR
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28. BANK BORROWING 28. 8RITEE

The Group
rEH
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
—EEhE —_TZT)N\F 1/1/2008
+=A =R —2EAS
=t-A =+—8B —A—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T FHET
Unsecured bank borrowing EEPIRITEE 194 - -
Carrying amount repayable: EEEREE :
On demand or within one year ZZKKKR —F K 111 - -
More than one year, but not —F LA EETBBAME
exceeding two years 83 - -
194 - -

RITEERFEANERS18% RERMNFEAE
B RITEETHBEBILE = Korea
Technology Credit Guarantee FundiZ

The bank borrowing bears interest at 5.18% per annum
and is repayable within 4 years. The bank borrowing was
guaranteed by an independent third party, Korea

Technology Credit Guarantee Fund. BR-
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Authorised and issued share capital EERBEETRA
2009 2008
—2ENF ZETNF
Number of Number of
shares  Amount shares Amount
BB EE €8 RHHE gk
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000  HK$'000
TR TET Tk TATL
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of FREECIBTL
HK$0.1 each TR 1,500,000 150,000 1,500,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued BRIRBRZEER
and fully paid:
At 1 January KR—H—H 315,362 31,536 313,580 31,358
Shares issued under share BRERE B RITRG
option scheme (note a) (K za) - - 1,782 178
Shares issued (note b) B#TRM (ff 7o) 8,535 854 - -
At 31 December R+=-—RBR=+—8H 323,897 32,390 315,362 31,536
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, options were
exercised to subscribe for 1,782,000 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of approximately HK$2,306,000
of which approximately HK$178,000 was credited to share
capital and the balance of approximately HK$2,128,000 was
credited to the share premium. Approximately HK$483,000
had been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 3()(ii).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 8,534,933 shares
were issued at HK$0.41 per share to the seller of patents as
disclosed in note 31. Approximately HK$ 854,000 was credited
to share capital and the balance of approximately HK$
2,645,000 was credited to the share premium.

St 765 R 3R B
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29. 7 @)
EERDBTRA @)

EREFAARRUEBARE RS
WHRARBAE LAIEBERRNEE—F
KRR - RARARZRBEENS @ A
ERAREBRSEN -

GEX

(@)

HE_ZZENFE+-_A=+—HIFE -
RE AR HE 1T 155 LARRIE 1,782,000 A A 7] &
A - R{EXA2,306,000/8 7T © EFH
178,000 TEFT ARE - 8L
2,128,000/ 7T B 5T AR DR E © BEA
483,000/ 7t B 1= BR B 3£ 3(1) (i) FT & < & &1
BRBEANREERERDEE -

BE_ZEThhFE+_A=+—RHIFE -
8,534,933 XN IZ FRR0.41B LT T H
MEEH (MM ES1FRFRE) - BEY
854,000 LB ARAE + 8L
2,645,000/8 70 2 5T ARG R (E o
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30. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 30. &1 Bl f# e
Properties
Share Capital Contribution revaluation  Statutory  Exchange  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

RivEE  EAEE ARG DXEEEE  IREE  EXBR  RER it
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§O0D  HKS$'00O
TR TAr TEm TRz TAr  TEm TEr  TAx

At 1 January 2008 RZZZN\E-A-H 53,310 5,003 - 14,559 6,489 - 284,117 363,478
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEE 2R T AE - - - (4,514) - (25,193) (2628 (32,33%)
Final dividend approved in respectof  SEAABERHEZRERE
the previous year (note 14(o)) (B3 14(0) - - - - - - (4,415) (4,415)
Shares issued under share option scheme IR EERE: 1% TR G 2,611 (489) = = = = = 2,128
Transfer from reserves BREER - - - - 1,004 - (1,004) -
Forfeiture of share options REERE - (3916) - - - - 3916 -
Dividend declared in respect of EERZAEERE
the current year (note 14(a)) (B3t 14(a) - - - - - - (1,577) (1577)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZ\ET-R=1-H 55,921 604 - 10,045 7,493 (25193 278409 327,279
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AEE2EMA (F%) &8
for the year - - - a3 - Bs6 (348%)  (19989)
Contribution from shareholders REiLE - - 9,046 - - - - 9,946
Lapse of share options BRELN - (604) - - - - 604 -
Transfer from reserves BREER - - - - 941 - (941) =
Share issued according to a patent REZTIRERRS
transfer agreement (note 29(o)) [EGUGIGEA) 2,645 - - - - - - 2,645
At 31 December 2009 RZEENET-R=1-H 58,566 - 9,946 18,386 8,434 (18,627) 243,180 319,885
31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1.7 mEas
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
—EBhE —ZTZT)N\F  1/1/2008
+=A +=—RA ZEZENF
=t—-B =+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET TAT
Fair value NREE
At the date of acquisition RUkEE R 7,908 = =
Fair value change credited FFASRERBEEERZ
to the consolidated income NAEEE
statement (517) - -

At 31 December

RN+-_A=+—8H 7,391 = =
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 3. TEERA T w

(Continued)

In March 2009, the Group and the Company entered into
a patent transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Seller”). The consideration
of approximately HK$10,242,000 was partially satisfied by
issuing 8,534,933 shares of the Company at HK$0.41 per
share to the Seller and the remaining consideration of
approximately HK$6,743,000 will be settled in cash along
with put options (“Options”) on period from the end of third
year to the end of forth year after the transaction, under
either condition:

(i) the Group and the Company will not be required to
make further payment if the share price of the Group
is higher than HK$1.2; or

(i) if the share price of the Company is lower than
HK$1.2, the Group and the Company will be required
to pay the difference of the basis price (being HK$1.2)
and the share price, multiple the number of shares
sold to the seller.

The details of the Options were set out in the Agreement
and the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2009.

The fair value of the Options granted is estimated at the
date of grant using binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the Options were
granted. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Dividend yield 1%
Expected volatility 85%
Risk-free interest rate 1.7%
Expected life 3.75 years
Weighted average share price HK$0.475

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the Options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the Options are based on
the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

RZZFBEZENF=R @+ NEERARQFEE
YE=FHTEHD T — 1D EFEEE R
= ([Wez]) » RIEBAI10,242,000/8 T35
LA & 1% 0.4178 703 178,534,933 A
AR TES - REEEX6,743,0008
TERR P2 R E=FREENFERIRE
VAR BAFE ([ER#E]) RIA TN IB R AR © 45
5

() WAEEZRGERSMN 55T -
AEERAARBAL A 5 X

(i) WARRE 2RO ERER1.2ETT -
REERARAB AL FERERS
(Bl1.2%7m) BRHER ZHEHE
B RUNEETESZRMEE -

Mg HBEN BB R ARFTNR TN
FZRA=+HEBHzAE -

iR 2 R A EETRA - BEE
T3 7R AT AR HARE 2 AR B AR HETT A
it e RIRAZBABEERE ¢

REE 1%
T8 HR R 1@ 85%
mR A S 1.7%
8 HA 4F B 3.75%F
In#EFE AR (E 0.4758 7

—ERBAE ARG R AR EE -
S A A (R TR R B R B30 T
REESEHEEAE  BREEERSHH
EETFEEBR2TRMHRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2009

HREEFERERQA

St 765 R 3R B

BE-_ZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

153

32 IERERIR

R FAR R NI 2 IRAE R TR & B
BMORRERZESHMT

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in

the statements of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

The Group

A EH

Depreciation Revaluation
allowances of land and

in excess of  buildings

related held for

depreciation  own use

B Eff
BHiTEz ®BEBRAZ  Patents Total
TEERE tHREF il gt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TET TET TET THET
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZ\F—H—-H 1,430 268 - 1,698
Credited to profit or loss (note 10) REEEF A (F1310) (324) — - (324)
Debited to reserve Eﬁﬁ Rk - 635 - 635
At 31 December 2008 RZZEEN\F+=A=+—H 1,106 903 - 2,009
Acquisition g1 - - 787 787
Exchange adjustments X A E - - 120 120

Credited (charged) to profit or loss RERFE A FR)

(note 10) (F3E10) (1,106) — 1,750 644
Debited to reserve TERER R - 826 - 826
At 31 December 2009 R-ZETAF+-A=1—H - 1,729 2,657 4,386

The Company b /N

Depreciation Revaluation

allowances of land and

in excess of  buildings

related held for

depreciation own use

e Eff
BHiTEz ®BEBRAZ  Patents Total
TERRE tHREF Vi) @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET TAT FHT
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZEN\F—H—H 1,430 268 - 1,698
Credited to profit or loss REZEFFA (324) = - (324)
Debited to reserve EJFME%’ & - 635 - 635
At 31 December 2008 RZEZNF+-A=+—H 1,106 903 - 2,009
(Credited) charged to profit or loss RE&ER GTA) 1R (1,106) - 1,793 687
Debited to reserve Eﬂ\ﬁﬁﬁ - 826 - 826
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF+-A=+—H - 1,729 1,793 3,522
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32.

33.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
3(m), the Group and the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets of its Korea Branch of approximately
HK$1,208,000 (2008: HK$993,000) in respect of tax
losses of approximately HK$9,981,000 (2008: HK$
8,204,000). For year ended 31 December 2009, deductible
temporary difference in respect of depreciation allowance
approximately of HK$10,159,000 had not recognised as
deferred tax assets.

Tax losses of approximately HK$2,483,000, HK$606,000,
HK$3,730,000 and HK$2,484,000 will expire in 2010,
2012, 2013 and 2014 (2008: HK$ 1,385,000,
HK$2,483,000, HK$606,000 and $3,730,000 expire in
2009, 2010, 2012 and 2013), respectively. Tax losses of
approximately HK$4,869,000 (2008: HK$3,319,000) may
be carried forward indefinitely in Korea’s subsidiary.

Effective 1 January 2008, the Company is subject to a
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend payment
from its PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$327,000 (2008: HK$156,000) in respect
of temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries operating in the PRC of approximately
HK$6,554,000 (2008: HK$3,125,000) have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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32.

33.

iIE #E B 18 ()

BB EIMATE 2 25K - AKE K
RARWEERRER D AR 2 ELEFRIEE
E#1,208,0008 L (ZZEZF )\ F
993,000/ 7T) « BLiRERIEE E TN EL
B8 499,981,000/ T (Z 2 )\ £F -
8,204,000/ 7T) - HE —ZEThF+ A
=+—HILFE  FETEReE K
HIETRS 4 2= E 4910,159,00058 7T I W R
EREFIBEE o

TR 15 B 18 492,483,000 7T ~ 606,000
JC * 3,730,000/ 7T & 2,484,000 7T 5 5
FMR—ZF—ZTF - —_F——F . _F—=
FRZZE—NFEB(ZZEZTNF :
1,385,000/ ¢ * 2,483,000/ 7
606,000/ 7T 13,730,000/ TR —Z T A,
F ZETF T FER-T—=
FEm) ° FiSE 494,869,000 7T (—
TE NG ¢ 3,319,000/ 7T) A £EPR HA 4k ed
ZEENBEAR -

—EENFE—A—HIEE  KARIZARF
Bl B R R TS 2 AR B #5% 2 T8
MBRGHTENR - WERBEPHLE
ZHBRARIZ AP RAZEBEREE
5 496,554,000 T (ZEF)\F :
3,125,000 ) R ELEREAELD
327,000 L (ZZFZ/\F : 156,000/
7T RERAKRRRZHZEHRBRARZ
REBK @ BEERENSER R ZHERS
AR sz 50m ) o

FE W IR SR TE

AR IBTYEE - R NEARERER -
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34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(@)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme
under the National Pension Act (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
Scheme at 4.5% of the employees’ monthly income,
subject to adjustments stipulated in the Scheme and
a cap of monthly income of KRW3.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$26,000).
Contributions to the Scheme vest immediately.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at 10-11% of the relevant PRC
employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions to
the scheme vest immediately.

Save as above, the Group has no other material obligations
to make payments in respect of retirement benefits of
employees.

HREEFERERQA
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34. BERKEF

(a)

B EXIBEEID -

AEERE(EERBIEATEEFE
&P /IREEBCREGDD FriE A
ZEERMERHMEAERFE (7
EEErE)) - BESAHEIRBYL
EREAETEZ RE /TGRS -
RigmiETtE  BEEREEES
BRZEBHBUMAZ5%. 2 LL B
SHEMEHR MR - MEAMEBKRAZ
EBR%20,000/8 7T ° sRiE & &2
HRAESR R ERERA -

FHBEZERELEBRENRESE
2 HA—HZRBERERESEXTL
ZsRw R ET 8 ([RZAT 1)) - 1B
Bzatd EEREESESEHAR
BESZAWAZ45%2 L BIgtakst
BEEHR (BRARAERZTE Z
RMEFAENK ER A3,600,000% B
(M1 E 26,0008 70) ° T3l 2
HREAEKEEEREEF -

AEERPEZHBARZ2EAH
BT T &t 2 E R KET & o MY
BRAARHMBETERESF 2
10-11% 2 L PIsRET I E H 3R - &t
2 HRABKREEERERA -

AEEHEEBRIK

18RI A 3R 2 LA AR o
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35. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 16 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, advisers and consultants, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options are exercisable progressively between one to three
years from the date of grant and will expire at the end of a
period to be notified by the directors of the Company to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years from the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary

share of the Company.

(@)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the years are as follows, whereby all options

are settled by physical delivery of shares:

35. AR 0 RER 2 A K

R

BEARAR—BR=_EZT=FXA+/<H
Bz BEIRiERTE - AARIESERER
ERAEEES (BEASERNEMAF
ZEF)  BERERBAARDENERE
ZEBH - ARBARRBIRGD o BRERH
RO BB —FE=FAZRSITE I
BRARREER HERER IS S EE
Hﬁ%?—irﬁ/\zﬁﬂﬁzg%ﬁ-rﬁﬁ 5% HA M

SEBAHF L AR TF - SHER
%ﬂ?ﬁ%%ﬁ}\wﬁ% RN E)E BT -

@ NURTBFREHFERREZGRRR
kit MATBBRENEST EXfT
tn 2 73 AT

Contractual life

Number of of options
options Exercise period B
BREHE T ZENEH
Options granted to directors:
RYTESCBRE
—on 7 July 2003 1,000,000 1 July 2004 5 years
-RZET=FLAtA to 30 June 2008 bik:3
“ZEMELA-HE
“EZN\FRA=TA
- on 6 May 2004 1,000,000 1 May 2005 5 years
-RZEEMFRARA to 30 April 2009 fik:3
i e = Y
—ZTNFMA=1H
Options granted to employees
and other eligible persons:
RTEENEMABBALZBRE :
- on 7 July 2003 15,220,000 1 July 2004 5 years
RZZEE=FtA+H to 30 June 2008 k3
“ZENELA—HZE
AN S e o =
Total share options 17,220,000

BRERH
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35. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 35. AR AER 2R

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ (Continued)

The maximum percentage of the share options which
are vested is determined in stages as follows:

X5 @
@ (&

RERBERERMN 2 BERERR
BOLBATHEER :

On or after the first anniversary R HERER

of grant date 30% F—BAFHAE 30%
On or after the second anniversary AT I B AR 4 H

of grant date another 30% FREF L AR H5N30%
On or after the third anniversary R B ER

of grant date another 40% F=ZRAFHAE 5 5MN0%

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices

(b) BEEZHE RNEFHITEELD

of share options are as follows: F ¢
2009 2008
“2ENE —ETNF

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise
price Number of price  Number of
MEF options  M{EFH options

THEE BREZE IRE BREHE

Outstanding at 1 January R—A—RHKTE HK$1.666 1,000,000 HK$1.316 17,220,000
Forfeited during the year FRERK - - HK$1.294 (14,438,000)
Exercised during the year FRNETHE - - HK$1.294 (1,782,000)
Lapsed during the year FRERMK HK$1.666 (1,000,000) = =
Outstanding at 31 December ~ R+ Z=A=+—HBRK{THE - - HK$1.666 1,000,000
Exercisable at 31 December Rt A=+—HAFUIE - - HK$1.666 1,000,000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had
an exercise price of HK$1.666, the exercise period
was from 1 May 2005 to 30 April 2009 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.3
year.

R-ZTNF+-A=+—HEA
1718 2 IR 2 1715 8 A1.66678
T AR R R EFEA—H
Z=FEAFMA=+EL - i
EPERBANERAROIT -
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35. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 35. AR B E 2 R A
TRANSACTIONS (continued) X5 @
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) EREZARBERRXR
The fair value of services rendered in return for share A BRE AR EMER 2 RE
options granted is measured by reference to the fair WAREE  H2REEREER
value of share options granted. The estimate of the B2 AREBAEE BRLERE
fair value of the share options granted is measured HEET AR EBETDRE ZE N B
based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual RABEEFE - BREZEHF
life of the option is used as an input into this model. B RAFTA 2 EER - H#i2
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into BT E 2 BHIE A Z B BhfE
the binomial lattice model. R A o
Date of grant
B
Fair value of share options 6 May 2004 7 July 2003
and assumptions —EEMEF —EE=F
BREAABERRBR FAKH tA+tH
Fair value at measurement date RstEHHIZ AR EE HK$0.6025 HK$0.3875
Share price f&(E HK$1.66 HK$1.25
Exercise price TEE HK$1.666 HK$1.294
Expected volatility TE DR IR 46% 41%
Option life BT 5 years 4F 5 years F
Expected dividends TEHARR 2 5% 4.25%
Risk-free interest rate = 3 B 1) 3.55% 2.7%
The expected volatility is based on the historic TE DR IR AR IR SRR IR 15
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future WARE R F & R 78 B 51 R 2ROR IR
volatility due to publicly available information. AIREEA 2 EMEE T AFE - 18
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. HRETIABERERELE - AX
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could BRD A EEREBROEE
materially affect the fair value estimate. B ARBEATEAREBEZME
gt e
The grantees are required to remain in service during EXRTEREZATEESEHNR
the vesting period, and not required to achieve any TMAER  MRAEREIERZE
other performance conditions or targets before they ARAERT « IR EAK T E D RIRIE
are entitled to the grants. There were no market B BE - REERELEMET

conditions associated with the share option grants. HAGME o
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36. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. WEE— R B A T
BE_ZEZNF+-_A=+—H1t
FE - AEEZKEX10,300,000
BT 0 B = W EEBrocolid
H59.5% AR ([EXKEE])
BrocoliJ5 R B s it A 32 2 A 7 -
MBUMRERAEZEREZRF] °

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group (@)
acquired a total of 59.5% equity interests in Brocoli
from independent third parties at a consideration of
approximately HK$10,300,000 (“First Acquisition”).
Brocoli is a company incorporated in Korea and is a
research and development oriented company.

BRRBIRABEAAR - AT
BEEFELRAMES ZEHE W

The First Acquisition has been accounted for using
the purchase method. The net assets acquired and

the goodwill arising, are as follows: ™
Acquiree’s Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value fair
amount adjustments value
BWEEZ DREE BUEEZ
REE AR AMREE
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
Net assets acquired: TR ESE
Plant and equipment 3= M Bk 1 294 - 294
Intangible assets — patents BVEE-—SME 1,536 6,507 8,043
Other receivables H A fE e AR 3K 40 - 40
Cash and cash equivalents e kREEEY 866 - 866
Accrued expenses and EirEAR
other payables H A fE T 30E (747) = (747)
Bank borrowing WITEE (241) - (241)
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIBAE - (787) (787)
1,748 5,720 7,468
Minority interests DERRERS (3,025)
Goodwill arising on acquisition Yt if & &= 5,857
10,300
Consideration satisfied by: BUATHAZARE :
Cash He 10,300
Net cash outflow arising B 1 = A
on acquisition: REemFeE -
Cash consideration paid EFRENRE (10,300)
Cash and cash equivalents PR iER & &
acquired ReEED 866

(9,434)
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36. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The acquired subsidiary contributed approximately
HK$1,425,000 to the Group’s loss for the period
between the date of acquisition and the reporting
date.

If the First Acquisition had been completed on 1
January 2009, total group turnover for the period
would had been approximately HK$592,378,000 and
loss for the period would had been approximately
HK$26,188,000. The pro forma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would had been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2009,
nor was it intended to be a projection of future results.

The goodwill was arisen from the synergy upon the
business combination of the acquired subsidiary and
the Group.

In addition, the Group contributed additional share
capital of approximately HK$1,264,000 to Brocoli
which represented 10.2% additional interest deemed
to be acquired while the minority shareholders did
not increase their contribution. Consequently, the
equity interest of the Group in Brocoli was increased
by 10.2% from 59.5% to 69.7%. The additional equity
interest being acquired through the increase in the
relevant share of the carrying value of Brocoli’s net
assets of approximately HK$301,000 recorded in
other reserve.

St 765 R 3R B
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36. W g — BB D T @)

(@)

(%)

BRERANESRAMIE - FAEE
EBARAAREAHEEERR
#91,425,000/8 7T

MERAKBER_BEThE—A—
B ' AHMZAEELEREL
£592,378,0007%8 7T + M AHARE EE
#4)426,188,000/8 T ° EE EFHE
MR - WIEAEE BERERS
mREE (BRRER ST NF—
A—BZ%EK) 2E1E - IR AEAER
REE ZTEA -

BB AT EN B AR EARE
ETEBEFZHRR D MESE

I A) » 7K £ B [ Brocoligg 4h Hi & I
AK#91,264,00078 7T BIAR{ERS T
W Z10.2%FEIMER T S
AR R EIEINE HERE - Bt
NEB N Brocoliz BRA# 25 B
59.5%1%N110.2% £ 69.7% ° & i@ 1%
IR Brocoli& E /5B < FRHEE 248
o BIINRAERD
301,000 T E R E b EERCER o



KEBFEBERAD 167

Notes to the Financial Statements BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_ZTNF+_A=T—HLEFE

37. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 37. BUT 1 b
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the government HE_ZTTNF+_A=+—HILFE -
grant was acquired through the acquisition of a subsidiary. BT 4 R T B A U S — B B A AR &
The Group received Korean government grants with BY o ANEEEWERGE B BT R AL < SRIBA A
proceeds of approximately KRW48,834,000 (equivalent to 48,834,000%% B (A8 & M £7325,000/%
approximately HK$325,000) to finance the acquisition of TL) AR E WSS TR KRR o Ak
certain plant and equipment. The grant is initially measured HEVFZ R AR EBERE - KEMEEZ
at its fair value. The benefit derived from such grant of FzE£) /40,0008 7T + THIE1F 1R AE
approximately HK$40,000, that represents initial FEEREECHR - Wi iRE AR
recognition as a deduction from the carrying amount of REREETINE ZAREENERET
the relevant asset and will be recognised in profit or loss R -RZTETNF+A=+—0 'K
on the same basis as depreciation for the related plant REFABRF R A IREHEKATE o

and equipment. At 31 December 2009, such a government
loan is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

38. COMMITMENTS 38. HEiE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the @ MRERBARRUBHKRFEITNE
reporting period contracted for but not provided for MARIERER 2 EAERENT ¢

in the financial statements in respect of the following:

The Group The Company
23 N
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZBEAE —TTN\F ZBBRAE —TI)NF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TET TR TET

Property, plant and equipment 1% - # 2 K& k& 2,367 266 2,367 15
(b) The Group and the Company as lessee b)) AEERARBEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and REWMAR - XEBRAQAIRE
the Company had commitments for future minimum ARG EHEFTRBEN 2 &
lease payments under non-cancellable operating R EFRIB 2 AW T -

leases which fall due as follows:

The Group The Company
X5E NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZBEAE —TT/\F ZBBRAFE _TT)\F
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR FHER TR

Within one year —FR 4,832 6,056 1,060 1,845
In the second to fifth year inclusive &~ FEEERFR
(BREEME) 8,485 14,957 203 1,584

13,317 21,013 1,263 3,429
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38. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

The Group and the Company as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables
by the Group and the Company for certain of its office
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively and rentals are fixed for an
average of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and
the Company respectively.

The Group and the Company as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$249,000 (2008: Nil). The property
is expected to generate rental yields of 6.07% on an
ongoing basis. All of the properties held have
committed tenants for the next 2 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receipts which fall due as follows:
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38. A&AIE wm)

(b)

AREE NARBERABEA (B)

REHEFREAEE MAR A5
ETHAEMEZENESR - A%
BEARE 2 BOKERRFAR
HORNFERRE - MALE LK
NEZHE DB EERFEN\F R
M -

AREERARBHESHEA

REEMEN 2 WERESWRAL B
249,000 T (ZEZ)N\F : T) - 78
AR FHFEH RS E6.07% ©
2HAFEZYWERRKMEHIHE
EFEGEARE

R2MEK - AR EE RS ETH
ZABSERENT -

The Group and the Company

AEBRAEADF

2009 2008

—ZThEF ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Within one year —F RN 312 =
In the second to F_FRBREFRAFA

fifth year inclusive (BEEREMF) 220 =

532 =
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Transactions with shareholders

(0

(i

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with Kwang Sung

HREEFERERQA
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V.EXBEALRS

BRAM SRR MM T B2 R ZI)
AREBETIZIATERFBEALRS °
@) HEERzZX5

() MNFEAR > AEEEAQREE
BRRHRASHEALEET ([EEH

Electronics Co., Ltd. (‘Kwang Sung Korea”), a KREDEFINATRS -
major shareholder of the Company:
2009 2008
—EBENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Sales of finished goods HEBK @ 2,246 5,318
Referral commission Bt/ EAENES
paid/payable 1,371 3,474
Subcontracting fee B EAMIE
paid/payable 1,659 714
Rental expense
paid/payable B EAEE - 216

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions were conducted in
the ordinary course of business and were on
normal commercial terms.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June
2003, two shareholders, Mr Yang Jai Sung and
Kwang Sung Korea, would indemnify the Group
for any tax liabilities payable for periods prior
to 30 June 2003. Amounts receivable from Mr
Yang Jai Sung and Kwang Sung Korea under
the indemnity at 31 December 2009 are
approximately HK$6,124,000 and
HK$4,206,000 (2008: HK$212,000 and
HK$146,000) respectively.

ARRZEEZRA LA
2 RERER—REBKBRE
IR IER B R IRFETT ©

(i) WEAPA-ZTZT=F A=
+=B 2 MEREBEEY - WA
BMRRERLARERE
E/\—Q ?—E/\ﬂ +E|H HH
F'ﬁZEHW“EEﬁK%I{’E
HRE - RIBFRERENZ
ENF+=ZA=1+— E%H&Z;@
EERERBERKREZFIES
B4 &6,124,000% T &
4,206,000 L (ZEZTNF :
212,000 7T % 146,000/%
JT) °
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties
(i)  Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the

Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 12
and certain of the highest paid employees as

St 765 R 3R B
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D.EXBAEALRS @

(b) REMBEAEALTZRS
) FEEBABZHE

TEEEAEME (BEER
BisE12h PR TR T AR A
BE2BEMERME13FR
BEXNTETEaFEEZS

(i

disclosed in note 13, is as follows: B)EYAT

2009 2008
—EEREF —TEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET

Short-term employee 5 HE B 48 A
benefits 8,198 10,473
Post-employment benefits Bt 8% 1% 12 7l 169 227
8,367 10,700

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 11).

During the year, the Group paid a consultancy
fee of approximately HK$494,000 (2008:
HK$572,000) to a close family member of Mr
Yang Jai Sung, a shareholder and a director of
the Company. No consultancy fee was
outstanding at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Reclassification has been made in the financial statements
including cost of sales, other income and amounts due
from shareholders due to the separate presentation of
material items. Statements of financial position as at 1
January 2008 have also been presented to conform to
the presentation of the current year.

& 45EE BEN 8 TRA]
(RMF7E11) ©

iy RAFE  AEBRARRZ
BWERREEREERE—RT
TR & £494,00075 7T
(ZZEZTNF : 572,000/
TT) c R—_ZEZNFR_FTE
NEF+_A=Z+—BEEHK
T ZEME -

40. LB F

AER 25 E KRB BEE - BEREAER
RIHERA - B WA K AR FRIEH
EFELEHIE -R_ZETN\F—H—H
ZHBARRIPEZES - M AERNFEZ
2R e



KEEFERBERAT
Five-year Financial Summary hEHBEBE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ZTTRHF ZTTRF ZITTEF ZTTN\F ZEBThF
Consolidated Income SEBRER
Statement (HK$’000) (FAT)
Turnover EER 648,559 611,215 783,453 797,912 592,280
Profit (loss) from operations e mf (B18) 28,995 20,886 34,870 (1,538) 3,308
Profit (loss) after taxation and K& 18 KA &l
attributable to owners B AEMN
of the Company w ) (B18) 25,561 18,458 30,275 (2,298) (35,774)
Dividends rds 10,026 5,639 9,116 1,577 -
Basic earnings (loss) FREXZAF
per share - HK cents (&518) — Bl 8.16 5.89 9.66 (0.73) (11.13)
Diluted earnings (loss) SREERF
per share — HK cents (&18) — Bl  naTER naTER 9.46 (0.73) (11.13)
Consolidated Statement 44 BT &R
of Financial Position (F#&T)
(HK$’000)
Non-current assets FRBEE 87,460 98,633 97,568 77,984 104,708
Current assets B EE 353,982 355,748 380,530 352,432 390,091
Current liabilities REAE (89,369)  (90,700)  (81,564)  (69,262)  (128,360)
Net current assets mBEEFE 264,613 265,048 298,966 283,170 261,731
Long-term liabilities EnRBEE (1,335) (2,019) (1,698 (2,009) (11,860)
Net assets BEFE 350,738 361,662 394,836 359,145 354,579
Consolidated Statement SR EEHRER
of Cash Flows (HK$'000)  (F#&7T)
Net cash from (used in) R EBFE (FTA)
operating activities ZIRE 68,977 29,094 25,335 (9,452) 32,172
Net cash from (used in) REESME (FTH)
investing activities ZBeFE (24,842) (42,522) 3,312 (9,515) 11,977
Net cash from (used in) MEEZENE (FTR)
financing activities & 55 (8,463) (8,147) (7,785) (3,686) (80)
Net increase (decrease) RekRBHEEEY
in cash and 238 G )
cash equivalents FRE 35,672 (21,575) 20,862 (22,653) 44,069
Share Information (HK$) BeBER (BT
Highest share price maRE $1.05 $1.60 $3.35 $3.27 $2.70
Lowest share price RERE $0.60 $0.84 $1.03 $1.11 $0.33
Year end closing share price  F R AL E $0.95 $1.60 $3.35 $2.68 $0.41
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CORPORATE INFORMATION NEIER
Board Of Directors =%
Non-executive director HHITEE

Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman) REER S E (/)
Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Yang Jai Sung RERSLAE

Mr. Woo Nam Jin (resigned on 29 January 2010) REEEE(RZZTE—ZEF-AZ+LBEEMD
Mr. Lee Kyu Young FEREE
Independent non-executive directors BYHFBITESE
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon IFERH+

Dr. Han Byung Joon BREE LT

Mr. Kim Chan Su SHEREE
Executive Committee HITZEES

Mr. Yang Jai Sung RERSEAE

Mr. Woo Nam Jin (resigned on 29 January 2010) EEEAERZE—ZEF— A=+ HED
Mr. Lee Kyu Young FEREAE
Audit Committee EXEES

Mr. Kim Chan Su SEAKTAE

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon BRIFERH+

Dr. Han Byung Joon BRAEELT

Mr. Yang Ho Sung 2HE 2 A
Remuneration Committee FMZEES

Dr. Han Byung Joon BREELT

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon TIEREELT

Mr. Kim Chan Su SHEREE

Mr. Yang Jai Sung REESLAE
Independent Board Committee BUEEZE®
Mr. Kim Chan Su SHEREE

Dr. Han Byung Joon BRAEE LT

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon T IEEET
Company Secretary DNEWE

Ms. Sin Lai Lan BEEZT



Corporate Information and
Shareholders’ Calendar
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Mr. Yang Jai Sung
Ms. Sin Lai Lan
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(engaged on 23 June 2009)
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SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR

Announcement of 2009 Final Results
26 March 2010

Closure of Register of Members
24 to 26 May 2010

Annual General Meeting
26 May 2010
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